


Contents

2

Corporate Information 3

Six Years Financial Summary 4

Milestones 2006 5

Managing Director’s Report 9

Management Discussion and Analysis 12

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management 27

Report of the Directors 31

Corporate Governance Report 42

Independent Auditors’ Report 48

Consolidated Income Statement 50

Consolidated Balance Sheet 51

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 53

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 54

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 56

Final Dividend and Closure or Register of Members 113

01	Chinasoft	PA	Content(e).indd			2 4/2/07			10:06:29	AM



Management Discussion and Analysis

17

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the year of 2006, the Group obtained satisfactory results in each of the businesses:

Consulting and Solutions Businesses

The Group’s solutions businesses have been profi t-driven and target-based. During the year of 2006, the turnover 

from the Group’s solutions businesses amounted to approximately RMB19.4 million, of which revenue from services 

amounted to RMB15.2 million, representing an increase of 39% when compared with 2005.

During the reporting period, by virtue of the continuous growth in consulting services and solutions businesses in 

Mainland China, and through deepened communication and fostering good relationship with important clients, the 

Group could safeguard the signing of major contracts, further enhancing its leading position in the industry. On the 

other hand, by leveraging on its technical expertise and resources, the Group was active in developing new businesses 

and identifying new clients so as to lessen its client concentration and make the revenue structure of the Company 

healthier.

Industry with leading position

1. Tobacco Industry

Tobacco industry is the major industry in the Group’s consulting services and solutions businesses. During the 

reporting period, the Group further explored the demand from the industry. While solving users’ enquiries 

immediately, the high quality proposals offered were highly regarded by the clients, which consolidated and 

expanded the Group’s revenue from the industry.

What is worth mentioning is that in March 2006, the Group completed the overall acceptance inspection of 

phase 1 and phase 2 of the Tobacco Production and Operation Decision System for the State Tobacco Control 

Bureau (no.1 project). The project covered 31 provinces in the nation and more than 400 cities. Through 

the inspection of the no.1 project, the Group fully demonstrated the organization capability and quality 

management control system for large projects, realizing the effective management from aspects of quality, 

progress, cost control and risk management, ensuring client satisfaction and safeguarding public recognition in 

the industry and ultimately rewarded us with the three-phase contract of no.1 project of “Bar-coding Cigarettes 

by Carton and Order Collection System for the State Tobacco Bureau”. This is another large project involving 

integrated development and portfolio implementation in national scale.
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(3) The above share options were offered on 30 March 2006 under the Share Option Scheme and were accepted on 27 April 

2006. The share options are exercisable for a period of ten years from the date of offer, subject to the following conditions:

Exercisable Period 

Commencing Ending Number of share options exercisable

30/03/2006 29//03/2016 25% of the total number of share options granted

30/03/2007 29//03/2016 25% of the total number of share options granted

30/03/2008 29//03/2016 25% of the total number of share options granted

30/03/2009 29//03/2016 25% of the total number of share options granted

Save as disclosed above and so far as was known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2006 none of the Directors or 

chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares, debentures or underlying shares 

of the Company or its associated corporations (as defi ned in Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notifi ed 

to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests 

and short positions which he is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, 

pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or which were required, pursuant 

to the required standard of dealings by directors of listed issuers as referred to in Rules 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules, 

to be notifi ed to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

As at 31 December 2006, none of the Directors had any direct or indirect interest in any assets which had been, since 

31 December 2006 (being the date to which the latest published audited accounts of the Company were made up), 

acquired or disposed of by, or leased to the Company or any member of the Group, or were proposed to be acquired 

or disposed of by, or leased to, any member of the Group.

As at 31 December 2006, none of the Directors were materially interested in any subsisting contract or arrangement 

which was signifi cant in relation to the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

During the year ended 31 December 2006, save as disclosed above. none of the Directors was granted any options to 

subscribe for shares of the Company. As at 31 December 2006, none of the Directors had any rights to acquire shares 

in the Company save as disclosed above.

REQUIRED STANDARD OF SECURITIES DEALINGS BY DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2006, the Company had adopted a code of conduct for directors’ securities 

transactions on terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of 

the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specifi c enquiry with all the Directors, the Directors had complied with the 

required standard of dealings and the code of conduct for directors’ securities transactions during the year ended 31 

December 2006.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As at 31 December 2006, share options allowing for the subscription of an aggregate of 78,210,000 Shares granted 

to certain directors and employees of the Group pursuant to the Share Option Scheme were outstanding, with terms 

on the exercise of such share options granted as set out in Notes (1), (2) and (3) in the section headed “Directors’ 

Interests in Shares” above. 

Save as disclosed above, no share options have been granted, exercised or have lapsed pursuant to the Share Option 

Scheme as at 31 December 2006.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any 

arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefi ts by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, 

the Company or any other body corporate. None of the Directors, or their spouses or children under 18 years of age, 

had any rights to subscribe for the shares of the Company, or had exercised any such rights during the period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 38 to the fi nancial statements, no contracts of signifi cance in relation to the Group’s 

business to which the Company, any of its subsidiary, its holding company or any subsidiary of its holding company 

was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the 

year or at any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had entered into continuing connected transactions as set out below. 

1. Commercial Agreement with Microsoft

Date of agreement : 26 September, 2005

Parties : the Company

  Microsoft, which had entered into an agreement to subscribe for convertible preferred 

shares of the Company and was expected to hold more than 10% of the voting rights 

at general meetings of the Company and thus a connected person of the Company.

The Company and Microsoft entered into the agreement for a term of three years and agreed to drive revenue 

associated with delivering software solutions using certain software products of Microsoft to assist the Company 

in growing its IT service business in the PRC. Under such agreement, the Company will achieve a target revenue 

of US$3.0 million, US$4.5 million and US$6.75 million respectively for the three years commencing from the 

closing date for subscription for convertible preferred shares of the Company by Microsoft.
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The Commercial Agreement constituted a continuing connected transaction of the Company. The annual cap 

amounts for the transactions contemplated under the Commercial Agreement are US$4.18 million, US$5.83 

million and US$8.35 million for the three years ending 31 December, 2008.

2. Lease of (i) 9th Floor of Block A, 3rd Floor of Block C and 3rd Floor, West Tower of Block B of 55 Xue Yuan Nan 

Road, Haidian District, Beijing, PRC, (ii) 5th Floor, Block B of 55 Xue Yuan Nan Road, Haidian District, Beijing, 

PRC, and (iii) 8th Floor of Block A of 55 Xue Yuan Nan Road, Haidian District, Beijing, PRC entered with CNSS

Date of lease : 1 January 2006

Floor area of leased premises : 2693.9025 square meters in aggregate

Term : 1 January 2006 to 31 December 2006

Monthly rent : RMB176,177.56 (equivalent to about 

  HK$169,401.50)

User : as offi ce premises

3. Master Services Agreement

Date of agreement : 27 October 2006

Parties : (1) the Company

  (2) Microsoft 

The Company and Microsoft entered into the agreement for a term of fi ve years and agreed to provide certain 

services including but not limited to the development and/or delivery of any materials, inventories, ideas, 

designs, concepts, techniques, discoveries, or improvements. The expected annual fee income generated from 

the provision of the services will not exceed US$7.2 million, US$9.4 million, US$12.2 million, US$15.9 million, 

US$20.7 million and US$20.2 million respectively for the six years ending 31 December 2011.

The Master Service Agreement constituted a continuing connected transaction of the Company. The annual cap 

amounts for the transactions contemplated under the Master Service Agreement are US$7.2 million, US$9.4 

million, US$12.2 million, US$15.9 million, US$20.7 million and US$20.2 million respectively for the six years 

ending 31 December 2011.

The Directors consider that the above continuing connected transactions of the Group have been entered into 

under normal commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual course of business, and the terms are fair and 

reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules 

in respect of the above transactions.

Save as disclosed therein, there were no other transactions required to be disclosed as connected transactions and/or 

continuing connected transactions in accordance with the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s fi ve largest customers accounted for less than 

30% of the Group’s total turnover and the Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately 13% of the Group’s 

total turnover.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the Group’s fi ve largest suppliers was approximately 39% of 

the Group’s total purchases and the Group’s largest supplier accounted for approximately 10% of the Group’s total 

purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors 

owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has any interest in any of the fi ve largest suppliers or customers 

of the Group.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2006, so far as is known to the Directors, the following persons (other than a Director or chief 

executive of the Company) had an interest in the shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the 

Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Long positions in Shares

   Approximate

    percentage of

  Approximate total issued share

  number capital of the

Name Nature of interest of Shares Company

  (million)

CS&S (HK) (Note 1)  Benefi cial interest 199.01 26.23%

CNSS (Note 1)  Interest of controlled  199.01 26.23%

  corporation

Chinasoft (HK) (Note 2) Interest of persons acting  199.01 26.23%

  in concert

Far East Technology (Note 3)  Benefi cial interest 130.13 17.15%

IFC (Note 4) Benefi cial interest 97.25 12.82%

Microsoft (Note 4) Benefi cial interest 97.25 12.82%
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Notes:

1 CNSS is taken to be interested in the Shares in which CS&S (HK) is interested. CNSS holds approximately 99.3% of the total 

voting rights of CS&S (HK). The number of Shares in which CS&S (HK) is interested includes 23,248,302 Shares which may 

be issued by the Company to CS&S (HK) pursuant to an acquisition agreement between Chinasoft (HK) and CS&S (HK) dated 

28th April 2005 subject to fulfi llment of a condition and the exercise of a cash option.

2. Chinasoft (HK) and CS&S (HK) are parties to agreements to acquire interests in the Company which include provisions 

imposing restrictions with respect to the disposal of interests acquired, and Chinasoft (HK) is taken to be interested in the 

Shares in which CS&S (HK) is interested pursuant to section 318 of the SFO.

3. Mr. Duncan Chiu and Mr. David Chiu, who were an executive Director and a non-executive Director of the Company 

respectively as at 31 December 2005, are nominated by Far East Technology. Both Mr. Duncan Chiu and Mr. David Chiu are 

directors of Far East Technology.

4. IFC and Microsoft were each interested in 97,250,000 Shares which could be issued to each of them upon the conversion 

of the 97,250,000 Series A Preferred Shares agreed to be subscribed for by each of them pursuant to a subscription 

agreement with the Company dated 26th September 2005 subject to the satisfaction of condition precedents set forth in the 

subscription agreement.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2006, no other interest or short position in the Shares or underlying 

shares of the Company were recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES 

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of the Company 

during the year under review.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman 

Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2006, Dr. Cui Hui, an non-executive Director, was interested in approximately 1.34% of the issued 

share capital of CNSS. Dr. Cui Hui also served as a director of CNSS. In addition, Madam Tang Min (an non-executive 

Director and Dr. Chen Yuhong (an executive Director) had been appointed as directors of CNSS since August 2000 

and April 2004 respectively. Although the Directors are of the view that the principal activities of CNSS do not directly 

compete with those of the Group currently, the Group and CNSS however are both engaged in the provision of 

information technology outsourcing.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2006, none of the Directors or the management shareholders of the 

Company and their respective associates (as defi ned under the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which 

competed or might compete with the business of the Group.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

A list of events which happened after the date of the consolidated balance sheet of the Group of 31 December 2006 

are set out in note 39 to the fi nancial statements.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche 

Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Chen Yuhong

Managing Director

Beijing, 30 March 2007
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors of the Company believes that corporate governance is essential to the success of the 

Company and has adopted various measures to ensure that a high standard of corporate governance is maintained. 

The code provisions in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing 

Rules (the “Code on Corporate Governance Practices”) have served as guideposts for the Company to follow in 

its implementation of corporate governance measures. The Company complied with all the code provisions in the 

Code on Corporate Governance Practices during the year under review, particularly with respect to the management 

of the board of directors, fi nancial reporting, communication with shareholders and the procedures for conduct of 

shareholders’ meetings.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting 

than the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specifi c 

enquiry of all the Directors, the Directors complied with such code of conduct and the required standard of dealings 

and its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors throughout the year ended 31 December 

2006.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year in review and up to the date of this report, the board of directors of the Company comprises:

Executive directors:

Dr. Chen Yuhong

Mr. Wang Hui

Dr. Tang Zhenming

Mr. Peng Jiang (resigned on 22 March 2006)

Non-executive directors:

Madam Tang Min (Chairman) (formerly an executive Director and re-designated as non-executive Director on 

 22 March 2006)

Dr. Cui Hui (formerly an executive Director and re-designated as non-executive Director on 

 22 March 2006)

Mr. Duncan Chiu (formerly an executive Director and re-designated as non-executive Director on 

 22 March 2006)

Mr. Liu Zheng

Mr. Timothy Chen Yung Cheng (appointed on 22 March 2006)

Mr. David Chiu (resigned on 22 March 2006)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. He Ning

Mr. Zeng Zhijie

Dr. Leung Wing Yin Patrick (appointed on 22 March 2006)

Mr. Au Yeung Shiu Kau Peter (resigned on 22 March 2006)
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During the year ended 31 December 2006, four full board meetings were held and the attendance of each director is 

set out as follows:

 Number of 

 board meetings Attendance

Name of Director attended in 2006  rate

Executive Directors:

Dr. Chen Yuhong 4 100%

Mr. Wang Hui 4 100%

Dr. Tang Zhenming 4 100%

Mr. Peng Jiang – N/A

Non-executive Directors:

Madam Tang Min 4 100%

Dr. Cui Hui 4 100%

Mr. Duncan Chiu 4 100%

Mr. Timothy Chen Yung Cheng 4 100%

Mr. Liu Zheng 4 100%

Mr. David Chiu – N/A

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. He Ning 4 100%

Mr. Zeng Zhijie 4 100%

Mr. Au Yeung Shiu Kau Peter – N/A

Dr. Leung Wing Yin Patrick 4 100%

The Board is currently responsible for corporate strategy and development, overseeing the business operations of 

the Group, fi nancial reporting, legal and regulatory compliance, directors’ appointments, risk management, major 

acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions. Major corporate matters delegated by the Board to management 

include preparation of annual and interim accounts for board approval, execution of business strategies and initiatives 

adopted by the Board and implementation of internal control system.

Details of backgrounds and qualifi cations of the chairman of the Company and the other Directors are set out in the 

section headed “Report of the Directors” in this Annual Report. All Directors have given suffi cient time and attention 

to the affairs of the Group. Each executive Director are suitably qualifi ed for his or her position, and has suffi cient 

experience to hold the position so as to carry out his duties effectively and effi ciently. 

Madam Tang Min and Dr. Cui Hui are both directors of CNSS, a substantial shareholder of the Company. Dr. Chen 

Yuhong and Dr. Cui Hui have been appointed as senior vice presidents of CNSS since December, 2003. Mr. Duncan 

Chiu is the brother of Dato’ David Chiu, a non-executive Director who resigned on 22 March 2006. Both Mr. Duncan 

Chiu and Dato’ David Chiu are directors of Far East Technology, a substantial shareholder of the Company. Save as 

aforesaid, there are no other relationships among the members of the board of Directors.
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The three independent non-executive Directors appointed by the Company have appropriate and suffi cient experience 

and qualifi cation to carry out their duties so as to protect the interests of shareholders. Each independent non-

executive Director gives an annual confi rmation of his independence to the Company, and the Company considers 

these Directors to be independent under Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The post of the chairman of the board (held by Madam Tang Min) and the post of the chief executive offi cer (held by 

Dr. Chen Yuhong, the Managing Director) are segregated. Madam Tang is responsible for leadership and organization 

of the board of directors, whereas Dr. Chen Yuhong is in charge of management of the overall business operations of 

the Group. 

APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Madam Tang Min, Dr. Cui Hui and Mr. Duncan Chiu were re-designated as non-executive Directors for a term of 

two years from 22 March 2006 and are subject to termination by one month’s notice by the Company or himself 

or herself. Mr. Timothy Chen Yung Cheng was appointed as a non-executive Director for two years from 22 March 

2006, subject to termination by one month’s notice by the Company or himself. The term of appointment of Mr. Liu 

Zheng as a non-executive Director expired on 20 June 2005 and has continued subject to termination by one month’s 

notice by the Company or himself. Mr. David Chiu resigned as non-executive Director with effect from 22 March 

2006.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established on 28 June 2005. During the year under review, the chairman of the 

committee was Madam Tang Min, and other members included Mr. He Ning, Dr. Chen Yuhong Mr. Zeng Zhijie and Dr. 

Leung Wing Yin Patrick. Dr. Chen Yuhong is executive Director, Madam Tang Min is non-executive Director and the 

remaining three members are independent non-executive Directors.

The role and function of the remuneration committee included the determination of the specifi c remuneration 

packages of all executive Directors, including benefi ts in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including 

any compensation payable for loss or termination of their offi ce or appointment, and making recommendations to 

the board of Directors for the remuneration of non-executive Directors. The remuneration committee will consider 

factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors, 

employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-based remuneration.

10	Chinasoft	PA	Governance(e).in44			44 4/1/07			5:55:09	PM



Corporate Governance Report

45

Details of attendance of the meeting of the Remuneration Committee are set out as follows:

 Number of Meetings

Name of Director attended in 2006 Attendance rate

Madam Tang Min 1 100%

Dr. Chen Yuhong 1 100%

Mr. He Ning 1 100%

Mr. Zeng Zhijie 1 100%

Dr. Leung Wing Yin Patrick 1 100%

The board of Directors considered that the existing terms of appointment and levels of remuneration of the Directors 

are fair and reasonable, and resolved that a review be carried out again in the year ending 31 December 2007.

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 2 June 2003, which serves as an incentive to attract, retain and 

motivate talented eligible staff, including the Directors. Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 30* 

to the fi nancial statements. The emolument payable to Directors will depend on their respective contractual terms 

under employment contracts, if any, and as recommended by the Remuneration Committee. Details of the Directors’ 

remuneration are set out in note 11 to the fi nancial statements.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

During the year under review, one meeting was held by the board of Directors to consider the appointment and 

removal of Directors. Details of attendance of the nomination of Directors meeting are set out as follows:

 Number of meetings Attendance

Name of member attended in 2006  rate

Madam Tang Min 1 100%

Dr. Chen Yuhong 1 100%

Mr. Duncan Chiu 1 100%

Dr. Leung Wing Yin Patrick 1 100%

Prior to the convening of the annual general meeting of the Company in April 2006, the board of Directors resolved 

that Dr. Chen Yuhong and Mr. He Ning should retire and stand for re-election at the annual general meeting in 

accordance with the requirements under the Articles of Association of the Company.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The audit committee of the Company is responsible for considering the appointment of the external auditor and 

reviewing any non-audit functions performed by the external auditor, including whether such non-audit functions 

could lead to any potential material adverse effect on the Company. During the year under review, the Group was 

required to pay an aggregate of approximately HK$2.4 million to the external auditors for their services including 

audit, due diligence and other advisory services.

INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year under review, the Company periodically conducted reviews of its system of internal control to ensure 

its effectiveness and adequacy. The Company periodically convened meetings to discuss fi nancial, operational and risk 

management control.

INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company has disclosed all necessary information to the shareholders in compliance with GEM Listing Rules. 

Meetings are held with media and investors periodically. The Company also replied to the enquires from shareholders 

in a timely manner. The Directors host a annual general meeting each year to meet the shareholders and answer their 

enquiries.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINASOFT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated fi nancial statements of Chinasoft International Limited (the “ Company”) and its 

subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “ Group”) set out on pages 50 to 112, which comprise the consolidated 

balance sheet as at 31 December 2006, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of 

changes in equity and the consolidated cash fl ow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of signifi cant 

accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these 

consolidated fi nancial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong 

Kong Institute of Certifi ed Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies 

Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the 

preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated fi nancial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making 

accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated fi nancial statements based on our audit and to report 

our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept 

liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong 

Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certifi ed Public Accountants. Those standards require 

that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to 

whether the consolidated fi nancial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

consolidated fi nancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated fi nancial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 

and true and fair presentation of the consolidated fi nancial statements in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 

consolidated fi nancial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated fi nancial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as 

at 31 December 2006 and of the Group’s loss and cash fl ows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong 

Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the 

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certifi ed Public Accountants

Hong Kong

30 March 2007
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for the year ended 31 December 2006

 NOTES 2006 2005

  RMB’000 RMB’000

Turnover 6 355,236 382,275

Cost of sales  (186,338) (264,279)

Gross profi t  168,898 117,996

Other operating income  9,147 4,649

Selling and distribution costs  (20,631) (18,918)

Administrative expenses  (78,082) (44,564)

Allowance for doubtful debts  (2,033) (9,264)

Amortisation of intangible assets

 and trademark use right  (8,364) (2,950)

Impairment loss recognised in respect of technical expertise  (1,087) –

Impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill 31(b) (988) –

Discount on acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary  1 –

Profi t from operations  66,861 46,949

Finance costs 7 – (25)

Share of net results of associates  2,489 1,790

Loss arising from changes in fair value of

 redeemable convertible preferred shares 28 (110,558) –

Redeemable convertible preferred shares issue expenses 28 (10,764) –

(Loss) profi t before taxation  (51,972) 48,714

Taxation 8 (11,881) (5,718)

(Loss) profi t for the year 9 (63,853) 42,996

Attributable to:

 Equity holders of the parent  (66,593) 39,656

 Minority interests  2,740 3,340

  (63,853) 42,996

Dividend 11 18,309 7,394

(Loss) earnings per share 12

 Basic  RMB(0.0891) RMB0.0556

 Diluted  N/A RMB0.0543
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 NOTES 2006 2005

  RMB’000 RMB’000

Non-current assets

 Property, plant and equipment 13 42,326 23,288

 Intangible assets 14 48,894 18,003

 Goodwill 15 140,157 79,168

 Interests in associates 16 8,452 8,303

 Trademark use right 17 1,550 –

 Payment for acquisition of software  3,654 –

 Prepaid lease payments 38(v) – 216

   245,033 128,978

Current assets

 Inventories 18 34,107 22,670

 Trade and other receivables 19 233,963 182,113

 Trade receivable from an associate 20 1,091 –

 Trade receivables from related companies 21 11,292 –

 Trademark use right 17 189 –

 Held-for-trading investment 22 501 –

 Amount due from a related company 21 – 1,815

 Loan to a related company 38(vi) – 1,450

 Pledged deposits 23 1,474 1,653

 Bank balances and cash 23 133,571 100,086

  416,188 309,787

Current liabilities

 Trade and other payables 24 107,670 98,270

 Trade payable to a related company 25 195 –

 Bills payable 26 24,252 26,781

 Amount due to a shareholder 25 – 9

 Amounts due to related companies 25 501 –

 Dividend payable to shareholders  74 –

 Taxation payable  4,715 2,846

 Deferred consideration 32(b) 15,600 –

 Consideration payable on acquisition of a

  subsidiary and technical expertise 31(a) & 32(a) 3,491 –

  156,498 127,906

Net current assets  259,690 181,881

 Total assets less current liabilities  504,723 310,859

 Non-current liabilities

 Deferred tax liabilities 27 2,588 1,824

 Redeemable convertible preferred shares 28 268,480 –

  271,068 1,824

  233,655 309,035
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 NOTES 2006 2005

  RMB’000 RMB’000

Capital and reserves

 Share capital 29 40,184 38,816

 Reserves 30 172,651 256,187

Equity attributable to equity holders of the

 parent  212,835 295,003

Minority interests  20,820 14,032

 Total equity  233,655 309,035

 

The consolidated fi nancial statements on pages 50 to 112 were approved and authorised for issue by the board of 

directors on 30 March 2007 and are signed on its behalf by:

 Dr. Chen Yuhong Duncan Chiu

 DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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 Attributable to the equity holders of the parent

       Statutory Statutory Statutory

     Share General enterprise surplus public

 Share Share Issuable Translation options reserve expansion reserve welfare Accumulated  Minority

 capital premium shares reserve reserve fund fund fund fund profi ts Total interests Total

 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

  (note 30)    (note 30) (note 30) (note 30) (note 30)

At 1 January 2005 36,968 85,185 – 90 3,492 1,250 589 – – 71,932 199,506 – 199,506

Exchange differences arising from translation

 of overseas operations and net loss recognised 

 directly in equity – – – (2,137) – – – – – – (2,137) – (2,137)

Profi t for the year – – – – – – – – – 39,656 39,656 3,340 42,996

Total recognised (expense) income for the year – – – (2,137) – – – – – 39,656 37,519 3,340 40,859

New issue of shares (see note 29(a)) 1,848 35,487 – – – – – – – – 37,335 – 37,335

Shares issuable on acquisition of subsidiaries – – 24,420 – – – – – – – 24,420 – 24,420

Acquisition of subsidiaries – – – – – – – – – – – 10,692 10,692

Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments – – – – 3,617 – – – – – 3,617 – 3,617

Transfer of share options reserve to accumulated

 profi ts upon lapse of share options – – – – (11) – – – – 11 – – –

Appropriations – – – – – 139 139 63 32 (373) – – –

Share of changes in equity of an associate – – – – – 184 – – – (184) – – –

Dividend for 2005 – – – – – – – – – (7,394) (7,394) – (7,394)

At 31 December 2005 38,816 120,672 24,420 (2,047) 7,098 1,573 728 63 32 103,648 295,003 14,032 309,035

Exchange differences arising from translation

 of overseas operations and loss gain recognised 

 directly in equity – – – (4,895) – – – – – – (4,895) – (4,895)

Loss (profi t) for the year – – – – – – – – – (66,593) (66,593) 2,740 (63,853)

Total recognised (expense) income for the year – – – (4,895) – – – – – (66,593) (71,488) 2,740 (68,748)

New issue of shares (see note 29(b)) 1,368 26,536 (24,420) – – – – – – – 3,484 – 3,484

Acquisition of a subsidiary – – – – – – – – – – – 2,215 2,215

Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries – – – – – – – – – – – (12,867) (12,867)

Capital contribution from a minority shareholder

 of a subsidiary – – – – – – – – – – – 14,700 14,700

Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments – – – – 4,145 – – – – – 4,145 – 4,145

Appropriations – – – – – 8,141 8,140 246 – (16,527) – – –

Transfer (see note 30) – – – – – – – 32 (32) – – – –

Dividend for 2006 – (18,309) – – – – – – – – (18,309) – (18,309)

At 31 December 2006 40,184 128,899 – (6,942) 11,243 9,714 8,868 341 – 20,528 212,835 20,820 233,655
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   2006 2005

  RMB’000 RMB’000

Operating activities

 (Loss) profi t before taxation  (51,972) 48,714

 Adjustments for:

  Share of net results of associates  (2,489) (1,790)

  Finance costs  – 25

  Interest income  (3,676) (548)

  Amortisation of intangible assets and trademark use right  8,364 2,950

  Impairment loss recognised in respect of technical expertise  1,087 –

  Impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill  988 –

  Discount on acquisition of additional interest

   in a subsidiary  (1) –

  Loss arising from changes in fair value of

   redeemable convertible preferred shares  110,558 –

  Expenses on issue of redeemable convertible

   preferred shares  10,764 –

  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  6,496 3,646

  Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  (2) –

  Allowance for doubtful debts  2,033 9,264

  Allowance for inventories  138 1,181

  Share option expenses  4,114 3,578

 Operating cash fl ows before movements in

 working capital  86,402 67,020

(Increase) decrease in inventories  (9,946) 12,113

Increase in trade and other receivables  (45,854) (17,882)

Increase in trade receivable from an associate  (1,091) –

Increase in trade receivables from related companies  (11,292) –

Increase in held-for-trading investment  (501) –

Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables  1,490 (11,613)

Increase in trade payable to a related company  195 –

Decrease in bills payable  (2,529) (1,633)

Cash generated from operations  16,874 48,005

Interest paid  – (25)

PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid  (9,446) (3,696)

Net cash from operating activities  7,428 44,284
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 NOTES 2006 2005

  RMB’000 RMB’000

Investing activities

 Dividend received from an associate  – 1,768

 Repayment from employees  – 310

 Interest received  3,676 548

 Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash and

  cash equivalents acquired 31 (27,811) 15,214

 Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries  (41,892) –

 Acquisition of contract-based customer-related

  intangible and technical expertise 32 (10,920) –

 Additions of development costs  (9,410) (5,424)

 Purchase of technical knowhow  – (500)

 Purchase of software  – (120)

 Payment for acquisition of software  (3,654) –

 Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  116 –

 Purchases of property, plant and equipment  (24,014) (11,421)

 Establishment of an associate  – (2,300)

 Acquisition of an associate  – (4,200)

 Decrease (increase) in pledged deposits  179 (560)

Net cash used in investing activities  (113,730) (6,685)

Financing activities

 Proceeds from issue of redeemable convertible

  preferred shares  161,824 –

 Expenses on issue of redeemable convertible preferred shares  (10,764) –

 Dividend paid  (18,235) (7,892)

 Advances to related companies  (2,840) –

 Loan to related companies  – (1,450)

 Capital contribution from a minority shareholder of a subsidiary  14,700 –

 Repayment to a shareholder  (9) (41)

Net cash from (used in) fi nancing activities  144,676 (9,383)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  38,374 28,216

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  100,086 74,029

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  (4,889) (2,159)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year,

 representing bank balances and cash  133,571 100,086
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 16 

February 2000 under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman 

Islands.

The shares of the Company are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM“) of The Stock Exchange of 

Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange“) with effect from 20 June 2003.

The addresses of the registered offi ce and principal places of business of the Company are disclosed in the 

“Corporate Information“ section to the annual report.

The consolidated fi nancial statements are presented in Renminbi dollars, which is the same as the functional 

currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of the Group are development and 

provision of solutions, provision of information technology (“IT“) consulting, training, outsourcing services and 

sale of standalone software and hardware products.

Particulars of the Company‘s subsidiaries at 31 December 2006 are set out as follows: 

   Percentage of

   nominal value

 Place of Issued and of issued share

 incorporation or fully paid capital/registered

 establishment/ share capital/ capital held

Name of company operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities

   Directly Indirectly

Chinasoft International  Samoa/  US$1  100%  – Investment holding

 Holdings Limited*  Hong Kong     

Chinasoft International  Hong Kong  HK$100  – 100%  Investment holding

 (Hong Kong) Limited       and trading of standalone

 (“Chinasoft (HK)“)**        software products

Chinasoft International  Hong Kong  HK$1  – 100%  Securities trading

 Treasury Management      

 (Hong Kong) Limited**      

Chinasoft Resource  Hong Kong  HK$100,000  – 100%  Provision of information

 (International) Limited**       technology outsourcing

       services

Chinasoft International Inc.  United States of  US$0.01  – 100%  Provision of information

  America       technology outsourcing

       services
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY – Continued

   Percentage of

   nominal value

 Place of Issued and of issued share

 incorporation or fully paid capital/registered

 establishment/ share capital/ capital held

Name of company operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities

   Directly Indirectly

北京中軟國際信息技術有限公司 People’s  RMB50,000,000  – 100%  Provision of solutions,

Chinasoft International   Republic of      information technology

 Information Technology   China       outsourcing, information

 Limited (“Chinasoft   (“PRC“)       technology consulting

 Beijing“)***       services, software

       development and trading

       of standalone software and

        hardware products

中軟國際（廣州）信息技術有限公司 PRC HK$5,000,000 – 100% Provision of solutions,

Chinasoft International       information technology

 (Guang Zhou) Information       outsourcing, information

 Technology Limited       technology consulting

 (“Chinasoft Guangzhou”)***       services and trading

       of standalone software and

       hardware products

中軟國際（杭州）信息技術有限公司 PRC HK$5,000,000 – 100% Provision of solutions,

Chinasoft International       information technology

 (Hang Zhou) Information       outsourcing, information

 Technology Limited       technology consulting

 (“Chinasoft Hangzhou”)***       services and trading

       of standalone software and

       hardware products

中軟總公司計算機培訓中心**** PRC RMB500,000 – 100% Provision of information

       technology consultancy

       and training services

中軟國際（昆明）信息技術有限公司 PRC HK$8,000,000 – 100% Provision of solutions,

Chinasoft International       information technology

 (Kunming) Information       outsourcing, information

 Technology Limited***       technology consulting

 (“Chinasoft Kunming”)       services and trading

       of standalone software and

       hardware products
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY – Continued

   Percentage of

   nominal value

 Place of Issued and of issued share

 incorporation or fully paid capital/registered

 establishment/ share capital/ capital held

Name of company operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities

   Directly Indirectly

中軟國際（湖南）信息技術有限公司 PRC US$1,000,000 – 100% Provision of solutions,

Chinasoft International       information technology

 (Hunan) Information       outsourcing, information

 Technology Limited       technology consulting

 (“Chinasoft Hunan”)***       services and trading

       of standalone software and

       hardware products

中軟賽博資源軟件技術（天津） PRC RMB5,000,000 – 76% Provision of information

　有限公司       technology outsourcing

CS&S Cyber Resources       services

 Software Technology

 (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.

 (“Cyber Resources”)*****

廈門中軟海晟信息技術有限公司 PRC RMB30,000,000 – 51% Provision of solutions,

　******       information technology

       outsourcing, information

       technology consulting

       services and trading

       of standalone software and

       hardware products

北京中軟資源信息科技服務有限公司 PRC US$800,000 – 100% Provision of information

Chinasoft Resources Information       technology outsourcing

 Technology Services Limited***       services

 (“Chinasoft Resources Beijing”)

深圳市中軟資源技術服務有限公司 PRC RMB5,000,000 – 100% Provision of information

Shenzhen Chinasoft Resources       technology outsourcing

 Information Technology       services

 Services Limited****

 (“Chinasoft Resources

 Shenzhen”)
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY – Continued

   Percentage of

   nominal value

 Place of Issued and of issued share

 incorporation or fully paid capital/registered

 establishment/ share capital/ capital held

Name of company operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities

   Directly Indirectly

上海中軟資源技術服務有限公司 PRC RMB3,000,000 – 60% Provision of information

Shanghai Chinasoft Resources       technology outsourcing

 Information Technology       services

 Services Limited******

 (“Chinasoft Resources

 Shanghai”)

* International company

** Limited liability company

*** Wholly foreign-owned enterprise

**** 中華人民共和國事業單位
***** Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise

****** Sino foreign-owned enterprise

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at 31 December 2006 or at any time during the year.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the fi rst time, a number of new standard, amendments and 

interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certifi ed Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), 

which are either effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 December 2005 or 1 January 2006. 

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the results and fi nancial position for the current 

or prior accounting periods have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has 

been required.

The Group has not early applied the following new Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS”), Hong Kong 

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and Interpretations (“HK(IFRIC)-INT”) that have been issued but 

are not yet effective. The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these HKAS, HKFRS and 

Interpretations will have no material impact on how the results and the fi nancial position of the Group are 

prepared and presented.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) – Continued

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital disclosures 1

HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures 1

HKFRS 8 Operating segments 2

HK(IFRIC) – Int 7 Applying the restatement approach under HKAS 29

  Financial Reporting in Hyperinfl ationary Economies 3

HK(IFRIC) – INT 8 Scope of HKFRS 2 4

HK(IFRIC) – INT 9 Reassessment of embedded derivatives 5

HK(IFRIC) – INT 10 Interim fi nancial reporting and impairment 6

HK(IFRIC) – Int 11 HKFRS 2 – Group and Treasury Share Transactions 7

HK(IFRIC) – Int 12 Service concession arrangements 8

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2006.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 May 2006.
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2006.
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 November 2006.
7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated fi nancial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain fi nancial 

instruments which are measured at fair value.

The consolidated fi nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting 

Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated fi nancial statements include 

applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock 

Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated fi nancial statements incorporate the fi nancial statements of the Company and entities 

(including special purpose entities) controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the 

Company has the power to govern the fi nancial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefi ts from 

its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income 

statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the fi nancial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting 

policies into line with those used by other members of the Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued

Basis of consolidation – Continued

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s equity 

therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original 

business combination and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of the combination. Losses 

applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the 

interests of the Group except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an 

additional investment to cover the losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is 

measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or 

assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs 

directly attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifi able assets, liabilities and contingent 

liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” are recognised at 

their fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of 

the cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifi able assets, 

liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair 

value of the acquiree’s identifi able assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business 

combination, the excess is recognised immediately in profi t or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the net 

fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.

Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries

When the Group increases its interest in an entity that is already controlled by the Company, goodwill (if any) 

arising on such acquisition represents the difference between the cost of additional interest acquired and the 

increase in the Group’s share of the fair value of the identifi able assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. No 

revaluation surplus or defi cit on revaluating all of the identifi able assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of 

the subsidiary to current fair value is recognised in the consolidated balance sheet. The difference between the 

fair value, representing the amount of consideration less the amount of goodwill, and the carrying amount of 

the net assets attributable to the additional interest acquired is recognised as a reserve movement and will be 

transferred to accumulated profi ts upon the disposal of the subsidiary. This difference represents the portion 

of the revaluation difference that arose since the original acquisition date that is attributable to the Group’s 

increased interest in the subsidiary.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts 

receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related 

taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed.

Service income from solutions and IT outsourcing on project-based IT development contracts (see policy below) 

is recognised on the percentage of completion method by reference to the value of work carried out during the 

year.

Income from provision of IT outsourcing, IT consulting and training services is recognised when the services are 

provided.

Interest income from a fi nancial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding 

and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash 

receipts through the expected life of the fi nancial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Project-based IT development contracts

When the outcome of a contract for project-based IT development can be estimated reliably, contract revenue 

and costs are charged to the income statement by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity 

at the balance sheet date, as measured by the proportion that costs incurred to date bear to estimated total 

costs for each contract.

When the outcome of a contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as an expense in 

the period in which they are incurred. Contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred 

that it is probable will be recoverable.

Where it is probable that the total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is 

recognised as an expense immediately.

Government grants

Government grants represent incentive subsidies from the government for the Group’s IT, technology research 

and development activities. There are no specifi c conditions attached to the grants and, therefore, they are 

recognised by the Group when they are received or receivable.

Tax incentive subsidies is recognised when it becomes receivable.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued

Leasing

Leases are classifi ed as fi nance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and 

rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classifi ed as operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profi t or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the 

relevant lease. Benefi ts received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised as 

a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Retirement benefi t costs

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefi t schemes or the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are 

charged as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profi t for the year. Taxable profi t differs from profi t as reported 

in the consolidated income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or 

deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability 

for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance 

sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the 

consolidated fi nancial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profi t, 

and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised 

for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable 

that taxable profi ts will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets 

and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition 

(other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the 

taxable profi t nor the accounting profi t.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and 

associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable 

that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent 

that it is no longer probable that suffi cient taxable profi ts will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be 

recovered.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued

Taxation – Continued

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or 

the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profi t or loss, except when it relates to items charged 

or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment over their estimated 

useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line method, at the 

following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements 18% – 331/3%

Furniture, fi xtures and equipment 9% – 20%

Motor vehicles 9% – 20%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefi ts 

are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the 

asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is 

included in the consolidated income statement in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with fi nite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated 

amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are identifi ed and recognised separately from goodwill 

where they satisfy the defi nition of an intangible asset and their fair values can be measured reliably. The cost of 

such intangible assets is their fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with fi nite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated 

amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with fi nite useful lives is 

provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Alternatively, intangible assets with indefi nite 

useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the 

net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated income 

statement when the asset is derecognised.

17a	Chinasoft	PA	Notes(E).indd			64 4/1/07			6:10:46	PM



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

65

for the year ended 31 December 2006

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued

Research and development expenditures

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development expenditure is recognised only if it is 

anticipated that the development costs incurred on a clearly-defi ned project will be recovered through future 

commercial activity. The resultant asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life, and carried at cost 

less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred 

from the date when the intangible asset fi rst meets the recognition criteria. Where no internally-generated 

intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is charged to profi t or loss in the period in which it 

is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible asset is reported at cost less accumulated 

amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary or an associate for which the agreement date is before 1 

January 2005 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the 

identifi able assets and liabilities of the relevant subsidiary or associate at the date of acquisition.

For previously capitalised goodwill, the Group has discontinued amortisation from 1 January 2005 onwards, and 

such goodwill is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that the cash-generating 

unit (“CGU”) to which the goodwill relates may be impaired (see the accounting policy below).

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary or an associate for which the agreement date is on or after 

1 January 2005 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of 

the identifi able assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant subsidiary or associate at the date of 

acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is presented separately in the consolidated balance 

sheet. Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of an associate (which is accounted for using the equity 

method) is included in the cost of the investment of the relevant associate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued

Goodwill – Continued

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant 

CGUs, or groups of CGUs, that are expected to receive benefi t from the synergies of the acquisition. A CGU to 

which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that 

the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a fi nancial year, the CGU to which goodwill 

has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that fi nancial year. When the recoverable amount 

of the CGU is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying 

amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit fi rst, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis 

of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the 

consolidated income statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary or an associate, the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is 

included in the determination of the amount of profi t or loss on disposal.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity, including an unincorporated entity such as a partnership, over which the investor has 

signifi cant infl uence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.

The results of assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated fi nancial statements 

using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the 

consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net 

assets of the associate, less any identifi ed impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate 

equals or exceeds its interest in that associate, the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. 

An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has 

incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifi able assets, 

liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as 

goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the interests in associates and is assessed for 

impairment as part of the interests.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifi able assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities 

over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profi t or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profi ts and losses are eliminated to the extent of 

the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued

Trademark use right

Trademark use right is amortised on a straight-line basis over the effective period stipulated on the trademark 

license registration certifi cate.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the fi rst-in, fi rst-out 

method.

Impairment losses (other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill))

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to 

determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable 

amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced 

to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised 

estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount 

that would have been determined to have no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A 

reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and fi nancial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when a group entity becomes 

a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and fi nancial liabilities are initially 

measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of fi nancial 

assets and fi nancial liabilities (other than fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities at fair value through profi t or 

loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the fi nancial assets or fi nancial liabilities, as appropriate, 

on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of fi nancial assets or fi nancial 

liabilities at fair value through profi t or loss are recognised immediately in profi t or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s fi nancial assets are classifi ed into one of the two categories, including fi nancial assets at fair 

value through profi t or loss and loans and receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of fi nancial assets are 

recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of 

fi nancial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention 

in the marketplace. The accounting policies adopted in respect of each category of fi nancial assets are set out 

below.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued

Financial assets – Continued

Financial assets at fair value through profi t or loss

The Group’s fi nancial assets at fair value through profi t or loss comprise of held-for-trading investment.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, fi nancial assets at fair value through profi t or loss 

are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in profi t or loss in the period in which 

they arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative fi nancial assets with fi xed or determinable payments that are not 

quoted in an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables 

(including trade and other receivables, trade receivable from an associate, trade receivables from related 

companies, amount due from a related company, loan to a related company, pledged deposits and bank 

balances) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any identifi ed impairment losses. 

An impairment loss is recognised in profi t or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, 

and is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated 

future cash fl ows discounted at the original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent 

periods when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring 

after the impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the date 

the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not 

been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classifi ed according to the substance of 

the contractual arrangements entered into and the defi nitions of a fi nancial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting 

all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of fi nancial liabilities and equity instruments are 

set out below.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued

Financial liabilities and equity – Continued

Financial liabilities at fair value through profi t or loss

The Group’s fi nancial liabilities at fair value through profi t or loss comprise of fi nancial liabilities designated at 

fair value through profi t or loss on initial recognition.

Redeemable convertible preferred shares issued by the Company that comprise of the host debt instrument and 

the embedded derivatives (including the redemption option and conversion option for the holder to convert 

the preferred shares into ordinary shares which will be settled other than by the exchange of a fi xed amount 

of cash or another fi nancial asset for a fi xed number of the Company’s own equity instruments which does not 

meet the equity classifi cation under HKAS 32) are designated as fi nancial liabilities at fair value through profi t or 

loss on initial recognition. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, the entire redeemable 

convertible preferred shares are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profi t or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the redeemable convertible preferred shares designated as fi nancial 

liabilities at fair value through profi t or loss are charged to profi t or loss immediately.

Other fi nancial liabilities

Other fi nancial liabilities including trade and other payables, trade payable to a related company, bills payable, 

amount due to a shareholder, amounts due to related companies and deferred consideration are subsequently 

measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash fl ows from the assets expire or, the fi nancial 

assets are transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the 

fi nancial assets. On derecognition of a fi nancial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and 

the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised 

directly in equity is recognised in profi t or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specifi ed in the relevant contract is discharged, 

cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the fi nancial liability derecognised and the 

consideration paid and payable is recognised in profi t or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued

Foreign currencies

In preparing the fi nancial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in currencies other than the 

functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the 

currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing 

on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies 

are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that 

are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value 

was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not 

retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items, 

are recognised in profi t or loss in the period in which they arise, except for exchange differences arising on 

a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation, in which case, such 

exchange differences are recognised in equity in the consolidated fi nancials statements. Exchange differences 

arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profi t or loss for the 

period except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and 

losses are recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in 

equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated fi nancial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s 

foreign operations are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Renminbi dollars) at the 

rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and expenses are translated at the 

average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fl uctuate signifi cantly during the period, in which 

case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, 

are recognised as a separate component of equity (the translation reserve). Such exchange differences are 

recognised in profi t or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifi able assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign 

operation on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and translated 

at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising are recognised in the 

translation reserve.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees of the Group, employees of an associate of the Group and customers of 

the Group

The Group has applied HKFRS 2 to share options granted on or after 1 January 2005. In relation to share 

options granted before 1 January 2005, the Group chose not to apply HKFRS 2 with respect to share options 

granted on or before 7 November 2002 and vested before 1 January 2005 in accordance with the transitional 

provisions of HKFRS 2. The Group has applied HKFRS 2 to share options that were granted after 7 November 

2002 and had not yet vested on 1 January 2005.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions – Continued

Share options granted to employees of the Group, employees of an associate of the Group and customers of 

the Group – Continued

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value of share options granted at the 

grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in share 

options reserve.

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected 

to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates, if any, is recognised in profi t or loss, with a 

corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share options reserve 

will be transferred to share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not 

exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to 

accumulated profi ts.

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance 

sheet date, that have a signifi cant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities within the next fi nancial year, are discussed below.

Allowance for doubtful debts

In determining whether there is objective evidence of allowance for doubtful debts, the Group takes into 

consideration the collectability, aging analysis of trade receivables and estimation of future cash fl ows. A 

considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including 

the current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each customer. The amount of the allowance 

for doubtful debts is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value 

of estimated future cash fl ows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the 

fi nancial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). 

Where the actual future cash fl ows are less than expected, an allowance for doubtful debts may arise.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGUs to 

which goodwill has been allocated. The Group has obtained business valuations of the relevant CGUs prepared by 

independent professional valuers for the purpose of goodwill impairment testing. The valuations are based on an 

estimation of a weighted average of market multiples based on comparable companies in the relevant industry. As 

at 31 December 2006, the carrying amount of goodwill was RMB140,157,000 (2005: RMB79,168,000). Details of 

the business valuations are disclosed in note 15. Should there be any change in the market conditions, it may lead 

to a change in the results of the valuations and an impairment to goodwill may be required.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY – Continued

Fair value of redeemable convertible preferred shares

The fair value of the fi nancial liability component of the redeemable convertible preferred shares is calculated 

using the effective interest method. The amount is estimated by using a discount cash fl ow model with 

assumptions on estimating the discount rate. The fair value of the derivative component of the redeemable 

convertible preferred shares is calculated using the binomial option pricing model. The model involves 

assumptions on the Company’s share price, exercise price, time to maturity, risk free rate, share price volatility 

and others. 

Should any of the assumptions be changed, it may lead to a material change to the fair value of the redeemable 

convertible preferred shares.

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major fi nancial instruments include trade and other receivables, bank balances, trade and other 

payables, bills payables and redeemable convertible preferred shares. Details of these fi nancial instruments are 

disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these fi nancial instruments and the policies on how to 

mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure 

appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

It is the Group’s policy for each operating entity to operate in local currency as far as possible to minimise 

currency risk. The Group’s principal businesses are conducted in Renminbi. Since the impact of foreign exchange 

exposure is minimal, no hedging against foreign currency exposure has been carried out by the management.

Fair value interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in respect of the redeemable convertible preferred shares 

which carry a fi xed cumulative dividend of 5.5% per annum. The Group currently does not have an interest rate 

hedging policy and will consider hedging signifi cant interest rate exposure should the need arises.

Cash fl ow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash fl ow interest rate risk through the impact of rate changes on interest bearing 

fi nancial assets which are mainly short-term bank deposits at market rates. Since the bank deposits are all short-

term in nature, any future variation in interest rates will not have a signifi cant impact on the results of the 

Group.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS – Continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies – Continued

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the counterparties failure to perform their 

obligations as at 31 December 2006 in relation to each class of recognised fi nancial assets is the carrying 

amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated balance sheet. The Group reviews the recoverable amount 

of each individual trade receivable at each balance sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses, if 

necessary, are made for irrecoverable amounts.

In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is signifi cantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned 

by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical locations is mainly in the PRC. The Group has no 

signifi cant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to security price risk in respect of the conversion option embedded in the redeemable 

convertible preferred shares, which allows the holders to convert to its own equity instruments.

Fair value

The fair value of fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities are determined as follows:

• the fair value of fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded 

on active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market bid prices and ask prices 

respectively; and

• the fair value of other fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities are determined in accordance with generally 

accepted pricing models based on discounted cash fl ow analysis or using prices from observable current 

market transactions.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities recorded at amortised 

cost in the fi nancial statements approximate their fair values.
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Turnover represents the net amounts received and receivable for goods sold and services rendered during the 

year.

Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into four operating divisions-solutions, IT 

outsourcing, IT consulting and training services, and sale of standalone software and hardware products. These 

divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information.

Segment information about these businesses is presented as follows:

INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2006

    Sale of

    standalone

   IT software

   consulting and

  IT and training hardware

 Solutions outsourcing services products Consolidated

 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Turnover 193,513 127,821 12,184 21,718 355,236

Segment result 103,502 25,060 545 7,570 136,677

Unallocated other operating income     9,147

Unallocated corporate expenses     (66,492)

Allowance for doubtful debts     (2,033)

Amortisation of intangible assets and

 trademark use right     (8,364)

Impairment loss recognised in respect of

 technical expertise     (1,087)

Impairment loss recognised in respect

 of goodwill     (988)

Discount on acquisition of additional

 interests in a subsidiary     1

Share of net results of associates     2,489

Loss arising from changes in fair value

 of derivative fi nancial instruments     (110,558)

Redeemable convertible preferred shares

 issue expenses     (10,764)

Loss before taxation     (51,972)

Taxation     (11,881)

Loss for the year     (63,853)

17a	Chinasoft	PA	Notes(E).indd			74 4/1/07			6:10:53	PM



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

75

for the year ended 31 December 2006

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION – Continued

Business segments – Continued

INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2005

    Sale of

    standalone

   IT software

   consulting and

  IT and training hardware

 Solutions outsourcing services products Consolidated

 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Turnover 301,075 53,034 7,552 20,614 382,275

Segment result 96,597 8,743 133 5,252 110,725

Unallocated other operating income     4,649

Unallocated corporate expenses     (56,211)

Allowance for doubtful debts     (9,264)

Amortisation of intangible assets     (2,950)

Finance costs     (25)

Share of net results of associates     1,790

Profi t before taxation     48,714

Taxation     (5,718)

Profi t for the year     42,996

No business segment information for the assets, liabilities, capital additions, depreciation and amortisation 

and other non-cash expenses of the Group is shown as all the assets and liabilities are shared by the business 

segments and cannot be separately allocated.

Geographical segments

No geographical segment information of the Group is shown as the operating businesses of the Group are 

substantially carried out in the PRC and the Group’s assets and liabilities are substantially located in the PRC.

17a	Chinasoft	PA	Notes(E).indd			75 4/1/07			6:10:53	PM



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

76

for the year ended 31 December 2006

7. FINANCE COSTS

 2006 2005

 RMB’000 RMB’000

Interest on borrowings wholly repayable within fi ve

 years:

Bank loans – 3

Other borrowings – 22

 – 25

8. TAXATION

 THE GROUP

 2006 2005

 RMB’000 RMB’000

The charge comprises:

Hong Kong Profi ts Tax 19 –

PRC Enterprise Income Tax 11,098 5,115

 11,117 5,115

Deferred tax (note 27) 764 603

 11,881 5,718

Hong Kong Profi ts Tax is calculated at 17.5% of the estimated assessable profi t for the year.

No provision for Hong Kong Profi ts Tax has been made for the year ended 31 December 2005 as the Group had 

no assessable profi t in Hong Kong for the year.

The statutory rate of PRC Enterprise Income Tax is 33%.

Certain group companies are subject to certain tax exemption arrangements as set out below.

Pursuant to an approval document issued by the State Bureau of Beijing Haidian District dated 21 November 

2000, 北京中軟國際信息技術有限公司 (“Chinasoft Beijing”), a subsidiary of the Company, had been 

designated as an advanced technology enterprise and its income tax rate was reduced from 33% to 15%. 

Moreover, Chinasoft Beijing was entitled to the three year’s exemption from income tax followed by three 

years of 50% tax reduction commencing from the fi rst profi t-making year with effect from 2000. As a result, 

Chinasoft Beijing is subject to the income tax computed at the rate of 7.5% for the three years ended 31 

December 2005 and at the rate of 15% on its taxable profi t thereafter.
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8. TAXATION – Continued

Pursuant to an approval document issued by the Guangzhou Science and Technology Bureau dated 31 March 

2004, 中軟國際 (廣州 )信息技術有限公司 ( “Chinasoft Guangzhou”), a subsidiary of the Company, had been 

designated as an advanced technology enterprise and its income tax rate was reduced from 33% to 15%. 

Moreover, pursuant to another approval document issued by the Guangzhou National Tax Bureau dated 2 June 

2004, Chinasoft Guangzhou was entitled to the two year’s exemption from income tax followed by three years 

of 50% tax reduction commencing from the fi rst profi t-making year with effect from 2003.

Pursuant to an approval document issued by the Hunan Science and Technology Bureau dated 13 June 2006, 中
軟國際(湖南)信息技術有限公司 (“Chinasoft Hunan”), a subsidiary of the Company, had been designated as an 

advanced technology enterprise and its income tax rate was reduced from 33% to 15%. Moreover, Chinasoft 

Hunan was entitled to the two year’s exemption from income tax followed by three years of 50% tax reduction 

commencing from the fi rst profi t-making year.

Pursuant to an approval document issued by the State Bureau of Tianjing Economic and Technology

Development Zone dated 20 February 2003, 中軟賽博資源軟件技術(天津)有限公司 ( “Cyber Resources”), a

subsidiary of the Company, was established before the end of the year 1995 and was approved as an 

production enterprise and its income tax rate was reduced from 33% to 15%.

Pursuant to an approval document issued by the Beijing Science and Technology Commission dated 25 June 

2004, 北京中軟資源信息科技服務有限公司 (“Chinasoft Resources Beijing”), a subsidiary of the Company, had 

been designated as an advanced technology enterprise and its income tax rate was reduced from 33% to 15%. 

Moreover, Chinasoft Resources Beijing was entitled to the two year’s exemption from income tax followed by 

three years of 50% tax reduction commencing from the fi rst profi t-making year with effect from 2004.

Pursuant to an approval document issued by the State Bureau of Shenzhen Nanshan District dated 1 March 

2005, 深圳市中軟資源技術服務有限公司 (“Chinasoft Resources Shenzhen”), a subsidiary of the Company, 

had been designated as a newly established software enterprise. As a result, Chinasoft Resources Shenzhen 

was entitled to the two year’s exemption from income tax followed by three years of 50% tax reduction 

commencing from the fi rst profi t-making year with effect from 2004.
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8. TAXATION – Continued

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to profi t before taxation as follows:

 2006 2005

 RMB’000 RMB’000

(Loss) profi t before taxation (51,972) 48,714

Tax at PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of 33% (17,151) 16,076

Tax effect of share of net results of associates (821) (592)

Tax effect attributable to tax exemptions and

 concessions granted to PRC subsidiaries (19,609) (15,718)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose 49,268 3,974

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose (947) (7)

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously

 not recognised (612) –

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 1,240 261

Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries 513 1,405

Others – 319

Tax charge for the year 11,881 5,718
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9. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

 2006 2005

 RMB’000 RMB’000

(Loss) profi t for the year has been arrived at after charging:

Directors’ remuneration (note 10) 3,636 2,489

Other staff costs 89,956 53,901

Retirement benefi t costs 6,856 3,182

Share option expenses 2,907 2,322

Total staff costs 103,355 61,894

Less: Staff costs capitalised as development costs (9,053) (5,424)

 94,302 56,470

Share option expenses

 - granted to employees of an associate 31 150

 - granted to customers 224 465

 255 615

Allowance for inventories 138 1,181

Research and development costs expensed 4,153 8,890

Auditors’ remuneration 2,288 1,518

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 55,880 195,608

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 6,496 3,646

Minimum lease payments in respect of land and buildings 8,997 4,605

Share of taxation of associates (included in share of

 net results of associates) 189 283

and after crediting:

Gain on fair value change on held-for-trading investment 150 –

Interest income 3,676 548

Government grants 4,422 –

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2 –

Net foreign exchange gains 410 –

Tax incentive subsidies 394 3,441
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments

Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2006 are as follows:

 Executive director Non-executive director Independent non-executive director
   

             Timothy    Leung

             Chen   Au Yeung Wing

 Chen Peng Duncan Cui Tang Wang Tang Duncan Cui Tang David Liu Yung He Zeng Shiu Yin

 Yuhong Jiang Chiu Hui Min Hui Zhenming Chiu Hui Min Chiu Zheng Cheng Ning Zhijie Kau Peter Patrick Total

 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Fees for:

 Executive directors – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – –

 Non-executive directors – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – –

 Independent non-executive directors – – – – – – – – – – – – – 105 105 15 – 225

Other emoluments for executive directors:

 Salaries and other benefi ts 772 99 – – – 629 413 116 116 116 – – – – – – – 2,261

 Share option expense 356 99 – – – 278 208 28 14 – – – – – – – – 983

 Retirement benefi t costs 26 5 – – – 26 18 – – – – – – – – – – 75

 1,154 203 – – – 933 639 144 130 116 – – – 105 105 15  3,544

Other emoluments for

 non-executive directors – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – –

Other emoluments for independent

 non-executive directors – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – 92 92

 – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – 92 92

Total directors' remuneration 1,154 203 – – – 933 639 144 130 116 – – – 105 105 15 92 3,636

Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2005 are as follows:

   Independent

 Executive director Non-executive director non-executive director
   

             Au Yeung

 Chen Peng Duncan Cui Tang Wang Tang David Chen Liu He Zeng Shiu

 Yuhong Jiang Chiu Hui Min Hui Zhenming Chiu Qiwei Zheng Ning Zhijie Kau Peter Total

 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Fees for:

 Executive directors – – – – – – – – – – – – – –

 Non-executive directors – – – – – – – – – – – – – –

 Independent non-executive director – – – – – – – – – – 64 64 64 192

Other emoluments for

 executive directors:

 Salaries and other benefi ts 495 405 120 120 120 47 35 – – – – – – 1,342

 Share option expense 352 214 62 – – 31 21 – – – – – – 680

 Retirement benefi t costs 14 14 – – – 2 1 – – – – – – 31

 Discretionary bonus (note)  – – – – – – – – – – – 244 – 244

 861 633 182 120 120 80 57 – – – 64 308 64 2,489

Other emoluments for

 non-executive directors – – – – – – – – – – – – – –

Other emoluments for

 independent non-executive directors – – – – – – – – – – – – – –

 – – – – – – – – – – – – – –

Total directors’ remuneration 861 633 182 120 120 80 57 – – – 64 308 64 2,489

Note: After a review by the board of directors (“BOD”) on 7 October 2005, the BOD resolved to pay a special bonus of 
RMB244,000 to Mr. Zeng Zhijie in recognition of his duties, responsibilities and satisfactory performance.
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS – Continued

Employees’ emoluments – Continued

Of the fi ve individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, two (2005: three) were directors of the 

Company whose emoluments were included above. In 2005, one of the three highest paid directors was 

promoted from an employee to a director. The emoluments of the remaining three (2005: two) highest paid 

individuals, (2005: including the employee’s emoluments of the director before his promotion) were as follows:

 2006 2005

 RMB’000 RMB’000

Salaries and other benefi ts 2,193 1,420

Share option expenses 261 364

Retirement benefi t costs 50 40

Discretionary bonus 189 143

 2,693 1,967

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

 No. of employees

 2006 2005

HK$nil to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to RMB1,000,000) 3 4

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 (equivalent to RMB 1,500,000) 2 1

 5 5

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the fi ve highest paid individuals (including 

directors and employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of 

offi ce.

None of the directors waived any emoluments during both years.
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11. DIVIDEND

 2006 2005

 RMB’000 RMB’000

Dividend recognised as distribution during the year:

 Final paid in respect of prior year - HK2.5 cents per 

  share (2005: HK1 cent),

  equivalent to RMB2.6 cents per share

  (2005: RMB1.06 cents) 18,309 7,394

A fi nal dividend of HK$0.001 (equivalent to RMB0.001) per share has been proposed by the directors and is 

subject to approval by the shareholders in general meeting.

12. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of 

the parent is based on the following data:

 2006 2005

 RMB’000 RMB’000

(Loss) earnings for the purposes of calculating basic

 and diluted (loss) earnings per share (66,593) 39,656

 Number of shares

 2006 2005

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the

 purpose of calculating basic (loss) earnings per share 747,120,005 713,455,342

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares issuable

 under the Company’s share option scheme  17,278,640

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the

 purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share  730,733,982

The diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2006 was not presented as the exercise of the share 

options and conversion of the redeemable convertible preferred shares outstanding would result in a decrease in 

loss per share.
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

  Furniture,

 Leasehold fi xtures and Motor

 improvements equipment vehicles Total

 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

COST

At 1 January 2005 3,623 10,280 3,047 16,950

Exchange adjustments (3) (2) – (5)

Additions 963 6,929 3,529 11,421

Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries 635 3,198 – 3,833

Written off – (21) – (21)

At 31 December 2005 5,218 20,384 6,576 32,178

Exchange adjustments (7) (4) – (11)

Additions 1,720 20,122 2,172 24,014

Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries – 1,491 149 1,640

Disposals (3) – (145) (148)

At 31 December 2006 6,928 41,993 8,752 57,673

DEPRECIATION

At 1 January 2005 1,537 3,269 462 5,268

Exchange adjustments (2) (1) – (3)

Provided for the year 843 2,454 349 3,646

Eliminated on written off – (21) – (21)

At 31 December 2005 2,378 5,701 811 8,890

Exchange realignment (4) (1) – (5)

Provided for the year 943 4,860 693 6,496

Eliminated on disposals – – (34) (34)

At 31 December 2006 3,317 10,560 1,470 15,347

CARRYING VALUES

At 31 December 2006 3,611 31,433 7,282 42,326

At 31 December 2005 2,840 14,683 5,765 23,288
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

   Contract-

   based

   customer-

 Development Technical  related Technical

 costs knowhow Software intangible expertise Total

 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

COST

At 1 January 2005 9,628 6,222 – – – 15,850

Additions 5,424 500 120 – – 6,044

At 31 December 2005 15,052 6,722 120 – – 21,894

Acquired on acquisitions 

 (note 32) – – – 19,704 11,080 30,784

Additions 9,410 – – – – 9,410

At 31 December 2006 24,462 6,722 120 19,704 11,080 62,088

AMORTISATION/IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2005 617 324 – – – 941

Provided for the year 2,272 678 – – – 2,950

At 31 December 2005 2,889 1,002 – – – 3,891

Impairment loss recognised

 for the year – – – – 1,087 1,087

Provided for the year 4,322 672 29 1,970 1,223 8,216

At 31 December 2006 7,211 1,674 29 1,970 2,310 13,194

CARRYING VALUES

At 31 December 2006 17,251 5,048 91 17,734 8,770 48,894

At 31 December 2005 12,163 5,720 120 – – 18,003

Development costs are internally generated. All of the Group’s technical knowhow, software, contract-based 

customer-related intangible and technical expertise were acquired from third parties.

The above intangible assets have defi nite useful lives and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the 

following periods:

Development costs and software 3-5 years

Technical knowhow 10 years

Contract-based customer-related intangible 5 years

Technical expertise 5 years
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15. GOODWILL

 RMB’000

COST

At 1 January 2005 27,226

Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries 51,942

At 31 December 2005 79,168

Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 31 (a) and (b)) 32,951

Arising on acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary 29,026

Impairment loss recognised for the year (988)

At 31 December 2006 140,157

Impairment testing on goodwill

As explained in note 6, the Group uses business segments as its primary segment for reporting segment 

information. For the purposes of impairment testing, the carrying amount of goodwill (net of impairment loss) 

as at 31 December 2006 has been allocated as follows:

 2006 2005

 RMB’000 RMB’000

IT outsourcing

 – Cyber Resources 31,963 –

 – Chinasoft Resources Beijing 80,968 51,942

 112,931 51,942

IT consulting and training services 830 830

Chinasoft Beijing (note) 26,396 26,396

 140,157 79,168

Note: The carrying amount of goodwill of RMB26,396,000 was resulted from the acquisition of additional interest of 

Chinasoft Beijing in 2004. The goodwill contributes to the cash fl ows of multiple business segments which cannot be 

allocated on a non-arbitrary basis to individual business segments.

During the year ended 31 December 2006, the Group recognised an impairment loss of RMB988,000 in 

relation to goodwill arising on acquisition of Chinasoft Resource (International) Limited. Chinasoft Resource 

(International) Limited is engaged in the business of provision of IT outsourcing services. As the management of 

the Group would take up the net liabilities of RMB988,000 incurred by the sole former shareholder on the date 

of acquisition of Chinasoft Resource (International) Limited, full impairment on the carrying amount of goodwill 

was made. Save as the aforesaid, management of the Group determines that there are no impairments of any 

of its CGUs containing goodwill.

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs and the methodology used for the year are 

summarised below:
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15. GOODWILL – Continued

IT outsourcing

The recoverable amount of this CGU is fair value less costs to sell and has been determined based on the 

valuation at 31 December 2006 prepared by independent professional valuers. The valuation is based on the 

management’s 2006 fi nancial information and a weighted average of market value of invested capital over 

earnings before taxation of 14 and that over earnings of 17 based on comparable companies in the relevant 

industry. Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions will not cause 

the aggregate carrying amount of the CGU to exceed its aggregate recoverable amount.

IT consulting and training services

The recoverable amount of this CGU is fair value less costs to sell and has been determined based on the 

valuation at 31 December 2006 prepared by independent professional valuers. The valuation is based on the 

management’s 2006 fi nancial information and a weighted average of market value of invested capital over 

earnings before taxation of 14 and that over earnings of 17 based on comparable companies in the relevant 

industry. Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions will not cause 

the aggregate carrying amount of the CGU to exceed its aggregate recoverable amount.

Chinasoft Beijing

The recoverable amount of this CGU is fair value less costs to sell and has been determined based on the 

valuation at 31 December 2006 prepared by independent professional valuers. The valuation is based on the 

management’s 2006 fi nancial information and a weighted average of market value of invested capital over 

earnings before taxation of 14 and that over earnings of 17 based on comparable companies in the relevant 

industry. Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions will not cause 

the aggregate carrying amount of the CGU to exceed its aggregate recoverable amount.
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16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

 2006 2005

 RMB’000 RMB’000

Unlisted cost of investments in associates 6,500 8,069

Share of post-acquisition profi ts, net of dividend received 1,952 234

 8,452 8,303

Particulars of the Group’s associates at 31 December 2006 are as follows:

    Proportion of

 Form of  Principal registered

 business Place of place of capital held

Name of associate structure establishment operation by the Group Nature of business

武漢中軟國際信息 Equity joint PRC PRC 46% Provision of solutions and

　技術有限公司 venture     information technology

Wuhan Chinasoft enterprise     consulting services

 International      

 Information

 Technology Limited

 (“Chinasoft Wuhan”)

北京中烟信息 Equity joint PRC PRC 20% Maintenance of a policy

　技術有限公司 venture     making system for the

China National Tobacco enterprise     production, operation and

 Information Company      management of the

 Limited (“China Tobacco”)      tobacco industry

Included in the unlisted cost of investments in associates is goodwill of RMB3,052,000 arising on acquisition of 

China Tobacco in 2005.
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17. TRADEMARK USE RIGHT

 RMB’000

COST

Additions and at 31 December 2006 1,887

AMORTISATION

Provided for the year and balance at 31 December 2006 148

CARRYING VALUE

At 31 December 2006 1,739

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

 Non-current assets 1,550

 Current assets 189

 1,739

The trademark use right is amortised on a straight-line basis over 10 years.

18. INVENTORIES

 2006 2005

 RMB’000 RMB’000

Computer hardware, equipment and software products 34,107 22,670
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

 2006 2005

 RMB’000 RMB’000

Trade receivables 208,273 142,593

Advances to suppliers 6,929 2,362

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 18,761 37,158

 233,963 182,113

The credit terms of the Group range from 30 to 90 days. An aged analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

 2006 2005

 RMB’000 RMB’000

Within 90 days 124,536 83,047

Between 91-180 days 16,504 12,740

Between 181-365 days 33,966 24,503

Between 1-2 years 27,362 11,333

Over 2 years 5,905 10,970

 208,273 142,593

20. TRADE RECEIVABLE FROM AN ASSOCIATE

At the balance sheet date, the trade receivable is aged between 181 and 365 days.

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES FROM RELATED COMPANIES/AMOUNT DUE 
FROM A RELATED COMPANY

At the balance sheet date, the trade receivables are aged within 90 days. The amount due from a related 

company as at 31 December 2005 was unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.
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22. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENT

 2006 2005

 RMB’000 RMB’000

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong,

 at quoted market price 501 –

23. PLEDGED DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES

Pledged deposits

The amount represents deposits pledged to two banks as guarantees for short-term trade facilities granted to 

the Group and are therefore classifi ed as current assets.

The deposits carry interest at the prevailing market interest rate at 0.72% per annum. The pledged deposits will 

be released upon the settlement of relevant trade facilities.

Bank balances

The amounts comprise short-term bank deposits carry at the prevailing market interest rates which range from 

2.25% to 2.80% per annum with an original maturity of three months or less.

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

 2006 2005

 RMB’000 RMB’000

Trade payables 64,579 80,438

Deposits received from customers 2,593 906

Other payables and accrued charges 40,498 16,926

 107,670 98,270

An aged analysis of trade payables is as follows:

 2006 2005

 RMB’000 RMB’000

Within 90 days 17,715 28,978

Between 91-180 days 7,193 11,167

Between 181-365 days 14,443 15,931

Between 1-2 years 13,453 24,280

Over 2 years 11,775 82

 64,579 80,438

17b	Chinasoft	PA	Notes(E)indd.in90			90 4/1/07			5:55:58	PM



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

91

for the year ended 31 December 2006

25. TRADE PAYABLE TO A RELATED COMPANY/AMOUNT(S) DUE TO A 
SHAREHOLDER/RELATED COMPANIES

At the balance sheet date, the trade payable is aged within 90 days. The amount due to a shareholder and 

amounts due to related companies are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

26. BILLS PAYABLE

An aged analysis of bills payable is as follows:

 2006 2005

 RMB’000 RMB’000

Within 90 days 22,771 14,420

Between 91-180 days 1,481 12,361

 24,252 26,781

27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group in respect of development costs and 

movement thereon during the current and prior year:

 RMB’000

At 1 January 2005 1,221

Charge to the consolidated income statement 603

At 31 December 2005 1,824

Charge to the consolidated income statement 764

At 31 December 2006 2,588

At the balance sheet date, the Group had unused tax losses available for offset against future profi ts of 

approximately RMB5,697,000 (2005: RMB1,766,000) which may be carried forward indefi nitely except losses 

of approximately RMB1,674,000 (2005: RMB1,856,000) which will expire in 2011. No deferred tax asset has 

been recognised in respect of such deductible temporary difference due to the unpredictability of future profi t 

streams.
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28. REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED SHARES

 

  Number Nominal

Redeemable convertible preferred shares of HK$0.50 each:  of shares amount

   HK$’000

Authorised

Increase in authorised preferred share capital

 and balance at 31 December 2005 and 2006  625,000,000 31,250

Issued and fully paid

Issued during the year and

 balance at 31 December 2006 194,500,000 9,725

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 28 December 2005, ordinary and special 

resolutions approving the following were passed and the following took effect:

(i) the Re-stated Memorandum and Articles of the Company (the “M&A”) was adopted and replaced the 

then M&A of the Company;

(ii) the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from HK$75,000,000 divided into 

1,500,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each to HK$106,250,000 divided into 1,500,000,000 

ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each and 625,000,000 redeemable convertible preferred shares (the “Series 

A Preferred Shares”) of HK$0.05 each, with the respective rights and privileges, and subject to the 

restrictions, set forth in the Re-stated M&A.

(iii) the issue by the Company of the Series A Preferred Shares pursuant to the terms of the Subscription 

Agreement, the Investors’ Rights Agreement and the relevant provision in the Re-stated M&A and the 

grant of anti-dilution rights to the holders of the Series A Preferred Shares stated in the Re-stated M&A.

On 6 January 2006, the Company announced the completion of the fi rst subscription of a total of 194,500,000 

Series A Preferred Shares of the Company by Microsoft Corporation (“Microsoft”) and International Finance 

Corporation (“IFC”). Under the fi rst subscription arrangement, 97,250,000 Series A Preferred Shares with a par 

value of HK$0.05 each were allotted and issued at a price of HK$0.8 each to each of Microsoft and IFC, raising 

a total of approximately RMB162,240,000 (equivalent to US$19,999,990) for the Company. Details of the issue 

of Series A Preferred Shares and fi rst subscription were set out in a circular dated 2 December 2005 issued by 

the Company.
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28. REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED SHARES – Continued

The Series A Preferred Shares are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Holders of the Series A Preferred Shares 

shall be entitled to a fi xed cumulative dividend of 5.5% per annum of the principal amount of the Series 

A Preferred Shares to be fi rst payable on a quarterly basis following the expiry of a six-month period after 

6 January 2006. They entitle the holders to convert them into ordinary shares of the Company at any time 

between the date of issue and up to the maturity date on the sixth anniversary of 6 January 2006 and without 

payment of any additional consideration, at the initial conversion rate of 1:1, subject to adjustment in respect of 

anti-dilution protections from time to time as provided in the M&A.

If the Company fails to complete the baseline amount of US$2,000,000 (equivalent to RMB15,560,000) as 

set forth in the commercial agreement dated 26 September 2005 entered into between Microsoft and the 

Company prior to the fi rst anniversary of 6 January 2006, upon receipt of a written notice by Microsoft, the 

Company shall redeem in cash such number of the Series A Preferred Shares then held by Microsoft plus 

the accrued and unpaid dividends thereon at any time with an aggregate amount of up to US$5,000,000 

(equivalent to RMB38,900,000). If all the Series A Preferred Shares then held by Microsoft are redeemed by the 

Company, IFC shall have a right, to require the Company, to redeem the Series A Preferred Shares held by it in 

an aggregate amount of not more than US$5,000,000 (equivalent to RMB38,900,000). All accrued and unpaid 

dividends payable on the Series A Preferred Shares held by IFC shall also be payable by the Company at that 

time.

If the Series A Preferred Shares have not been converted or redeemed, they will be mandatorily redeemed by 

the Company on the sixth anniversary of 6 January 2006.

All the detailed terms and conditions, including the above, are set out, inter alia, in the circular dated 2 

December 2005 issued by the Company.

The Group incurred expenses of RMB10,764,000 for the issuance of the Series A Preferred Shares. Such 

expenses have been recognised in the consolidated income statement for the year.

The Series A Preferred Shares contain the fi nancial liability and embedded derivatives and the entire instrument 

is designated as fi nancial liability at fair value through profi t or loss on initial recognition.

At the date of issue and balance sheet date, the fair value of the fi nancial liability of the Series A Preferred 

Shares was estimated by using market interest rates of 10.04% and 9.79% respectively. The fair value of the 

embedded derivatives is calculated using the binomial option pricing model. The inputs into the model were as 

follows:

Share price HK$0.92-HK$1.73

Exercise price HK$0.8

Time to maturity 5-6 years

Risk free rate 3.69%-4.00%

Share price volatility 36.52%-52.09%
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28. REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED SHARES – Continued

Share price volatility was estimated by the average annualised standard deviations of the continuously 

compounded rates of return on the Company’s share prices.

The movement of the fair value of the Series A Preferred Shares for the year is set out as below:

  RMB$’000

Carrying amount at 6 January 2006  161,824

Loss arising on changes of fair value  110,558

As at 31 December 2006  272,382

Included in the loss arising on changes of fair value, there is an interest expense of RMB 3,902,000 determined 

using the effective interest method. As at 31 December 2006, interest payable to preferred shareholders of 

RMB3,902,000 was included in trade and other payables in the consolidated balance sheet.
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29. SHARE CAPITAL

  Number Nominal

Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each:  of shares amount

   HK$’000

Authorised

At 1 January 2005, 31 December 2005

 and 2006  1,500,000,000 75,000

     Amount

     shown in

   Number  the fi nancial

 Notes  of shares Amount statements

    HK$ RMB’000

Issued and fully paid

At 1 January 2005   697,500,000 34,875,000 36,968

Issue of new shares (a)  34,872,453 1,743,623 1,848

At 31 December 2005   732,372,453 36,618,623 38,816

Issue of new shares (b)  26,445,023 1,322,251 1,368

At 31 December 2006   758,817,476 37,940,874 40,184

Notes:

(a) Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company on 22 June 2005, 34,872,453 new 

shares of the Company of HK$0.05 each were allotted and issued as fully paid to China National Computer Software 

& Technology Service Corporation (Hong Kong) Limited (“CS&S (HK)”) as the fi rst portion of consideration shares of 

HK$1.01 each for the acquisition of 51% equity interest in the registered capital of Chinasoft Resources Beijing.

(b) Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company on 22 June 2005 and after the 

achievement of the Performance Hurdle as described in the circular of the Company dated 6 June 2005, 23,248,302 

new shares of the Company of HK$0.05 each were allotted and issued as fully paid to CS&S (HK) as the second portion 

of consideration shares of HK$1.01 each for the acquisition of 51% equity interest in the registered capital of Chinasoft 

Resources Beijing during the year.

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the directors of the Company on 4 July 2006, 3,196,721 new shares of the 

Company of HK$0.05 each were allotted and issued as fully paid to Beijing Opportune Technology Development 

Company Ltd. (“Opportune Technology”) as the consideration shares of HK$1.09 each for the acquisition of the Mobile 

and Embedded Divison of Opportune Technology.

All the shares which were issued by the Company during the year rank pari passu with each other in all 

respects.
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30. RESERVES

Share premium

In accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium account is distributable to 

the equity shareholders of the Company provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is 

proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary 

course of business. The share premium may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the directors of the Company on 30 March 2006, dividend for 

2006 in the amount of RMB18,309,000 was paid and distributed out of the share premium account.

General reserve fund and statutory enterprise expansion fund

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, Chinasoft Beijing, Chinasoft Guangzhou, 

Chinasoft Hangzhou, Chinasoft Kunming, Chinasoft Hunan, Cyber Resources, Chinasoft Resources Beijing, and 

Chinasoft Resources Shanghai (the “Chinasoft subsidiaries”) are required to provide for the general reserve 

fund and the statutory enterprise expansion fund. Appropriations to such reserve funds are made out of net 

profi t after taxation as reported in the statutory fi nancial statements of the Chinasoft subsidiaries prepared in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the PRC and the amount and allocation basis are 

decided by its board of directors annually. The general reserve fund can be used to make up prior year losses of 

the Chinasoft subsidiaries, if any, and can be applied in conversion into capital by means of capitalisation issue. 

The statutory enterprise expansion fund is used for expanding the capital base of the Chinasoft subsidiaries by 

means of capitalisation issue.

Statutory surplus reserve fund and statutory public welfare fund

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, 廈門中軟海晟信息技術有限公司 and Chinasoft 

Resources Shenzhen is required to provide for the statutory surplus reserve fund and the statutory public welfare 

fund. Appropriations to such funds are made out of 5% to 10% of the net profi t after taxation as reported 

in the statutory fi nancial statements of 廈門中軟海晟信息技術有限公司 and Chinasoft Resources Shenzhen 

prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the PRC. The statutory surplus reserve 

fund can be used to make up prior year losses, to expand production operations or to increase registered capital 

of 廈門中軟海晟信息技術有限公司 and Chinasoft Resources Shenzhen. The statutory public welfare fund can 

be used for employees’ collective welfare benefi ts.

Pursuant to a notice issued by the Ministry of Finance regarding the change of accounting treatment of profi t 

appropriation of statutory public welfare fund after the implementation of PRC Company Law, no statutory 

public welfare fund will be accrued from 2006 onwards. The remaining balance of statutory public welfare fund 

was transferred to statutory surplus reserve fund.
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31. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a) In July 2006, the Group acquired an additional 50% equity interest in the registered capital of Cyber 

Resources for a cash consideration of RMB36,605,000. Cyber Resources is engaged in the business of 

provision of IT outsourcing services. It was previously an associate of the Group in which the Group had a 

26% equity interest. At the acquisition date, the carrying amount of the interest in an associate amounted 

to RMB2,371,000. Acquisition of the subsidiary was accounted for by the purchase method.

The fair values of the identifi able assets and liabilities of the subsidiary acquired during the year have no 

signifi cant differences from their respective carrying amounts. The net assets acquired in the transaction, 

representing the acquiree’s carrying amount and fair value, and the goodwill arising, are as follows:

 2006

 RMB’000

Net assets acquired:

 Property, plant and equipment 1,626

 Inventories 1,629

 Trade and other receivables 7,367

 Amount due from a related company 911

 Bank balances and cash 1,901

 Trade and other payables (4,008)

 Taxation payable (198)

 9,228

Minority interests (2,215)

Goodwill on acquisition 31,963

Total consideration 38,976

Satisfi ed by:

 Cash 33,894

 Consideration payable 2,711

 Reclassifi cation of interest in an associate 2,371

 38,976

Net cash outfl ow arising on acquisition:

Cash consideration paid 33,894

Bank balances and cash acquired (1,901)

Net outfl ow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of

 the acquisition of a subsidiary 31,993
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31. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES – Continued

(b) In August 2006, the Group acquired the entire interest in the issued share capital of Chinasoft Resource 

(International) Limited for a cash consideration of HK$1 (equivalent to RMB1). Chinasoft Resource 

(International) Limited is engaged in the business of provision of IT outsourcing services. Acquisition of the 

subsidiary was accounted for by the purchase method.

The fair values of the identifi able assets and liabilities of the subsidiary acquired during the year have 

no signifi cant differences from their respective carrying amounts. The net liabilities assumed in the 

transaction, representing the acquiree’s carrying amount and fair value, and the goodwill arising, are as 

follows:

 2006

 RMB’000

Net liabilities assumed:

 Property, plant and equipment 14

 Trade receivables 662

 Bank balances and cash 4,182

 Amounts due to related companies (5,846)

 (988)

Goodwill on acquisition 988

Total consideration –

Infl ow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the

 acquisition of a subsidiary 4,182

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Cyber Resources is attributable to the anticipated profi tability of the 

provision of the Group’s services in the IT outsourcing market and the anticipated future operating synergies 

from the combination. The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Chinasoft Resource (International) Limited was 

fully impaired at the date of acquisition.

Cyber Resources and Chinasoft Resource (International) Limited contributed RMB24,690,000 and 

RMB2,520,000 respectively to the Group’s turnover and profi t of RMB7,306,000 and loss of RMB261,000 

respectively to the Group’s loss for the year between the date of acquisition and the balance sheet date.

If the acquisitions had been completed on 1 January 2006, total Group turnover for the year would have 

been RMB375,705,000, and loss for the year would have been RMB62,677,000. The proforma information is 

for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of turnover and results of operations of the 

Group that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2006, nor is it 

intended to be a projection of future results.
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31. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES – Continued

(c) In July 2005, the Group acquired 51% equity interest in the register capital of Chinasoft Resources Beijing 

for a consideration of the issuance of a total of 58,120,755 ordinary shares of the Company from CS&S 

(HK), a shareholder of the Company. Chinasoft Resources Beijing has two subsidiaries, namely Chinasoft 

Resources Shenzhen and Chinasoft Resources Shanghai. Acquisition of the subsidiaries was accounted for 

by the purchase method.

The fair values of the identifi able assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries acquired during the year had no 

signifi cant differences from their respective carrying amounts. The net assets acquired in the transaction, 

representing the acquiree’s carrying amount and fair value, and the goodwill arising, were as follows:

 2005

 RMB’000

Net assets acquired:

 Property, plant and equipment 3,833

 Inventories 1,479

 Trade and other receivables 9,540

 Bank balances and cash 15,214

 Trade and other payables (9,562)

 20,504

Minority interests (10,692)

Goodwill on acquisition 51,942

Total consideration 61,754

Satisfi ed by:

 Shares issued and to be issued (note) 61,754

Infl ow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the

 acquisition of subsidiaries 15,214

17b	Chinasoft	PA	Notes(E)indd.in99			99 4/1/07			5:56:04	PM



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

100

for the year ended 31 December 2006

31. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES – Continued

Note:

The consideration for the acquisition of Chinasoft Resources Beijing was satisfi ed by the issuance of 34,872,453 

ordinary shares of the Company with nominal value per share of HK$0.05 each during the year (the “fi rst portion of 

consideration shares”) and the remaining 23,248,302 ordinary shares (the “second portion of consideration shares”) 

would be issued in the year ended 31 December 2006 subject to the achievement of the Performance Hurdle as 

described in the circular of the Company dated 6 June 2005. The directors were of the opinion that the Performance 

Hurdle would be achieved. The fair value of the fi rst and second portion of consideration shares, determined using 

the published price available at the date of the acquisition at HK$1.01, amounted to RMB37,334,000 (equivalent to 

HK$35,221,000) and RMB 24,420,000 (equivalent to HK$23,481,000) respectively. The amount of the second portion 

of consideration shares of RMB24,420,000 was presented as issuable shares in the consolidated statement of changes 

of equity.

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Chinasoft Resources Beijing was attributable to the anticipated profi tability 

of the distribution of the Group’s products in the IT outsourcing market and the anticipated future operating synergies 

from the combination.

Chinasoft Resources Beijing contributed RMB30,680,000 to the Group’s turnover and RMB6,997,000 to the Group’s 

profi t for the year between the date of acquisition and the balance sheet date.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2005, total Group turnover for the period would have been 

RMB420,800,000, and profi t for the year would have been RMB44,374,000. The proforma information was for 

illustrative purposes only and was not necessarily an indication of turnover and results of operations of the Group that 

actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2005, nor was it intended to be a 

projection of future results.

32 ACQUISITION OF CONTRACT-BASED CUSTOMER-RELATED INTANGIBLE 
AND TECHNICAL EXPERTISE

(a) In May 2006, the Group acquired the technical expertise of Powerise International Software Co., Ltd. and 

Powerise Japan Co., Ltd., representing employees with experience in enterprise resource planning system 

and in the Japanese market, for a cash consideration of US$1,000,000 (equivalent to RMB7,800,000). The 

acquisition of the technical expertise enhances the Group’s advantageous position in Microsoft business 

and rapid expansion into the Japanese market. Acquisition of the technical expertise was accounted for 

as an intangible asset (see note 14) and represented the cash consideration of US$1,000,000 (equivalent 

to RMB7,800,000). The outfl ow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the acquisition of technical 

expertise was US$900,000 (equivalent to RMB7,020,000) and the remaining US$100,000 (equivalent to 

RMB780,000) was included in consideration payable on acquisition of a subsidiary and technical expertise 

at the balance sheet date.
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32 ACQUISITION OF CONTRACT-BASED CUSTOMER-RELATED INTANGIBLE 
AND TECHNICAL EXPERTISE – Continued

(b) In July 2006, the Group acquired the Mobile and Embedded Division from Opportune Technology. The 

acquired assets comprised of the contract-based customer relationship with Microsoft and employees with 

strong expertise in the outsourcing operation of Microsoft. As one of the Group’s major strategic clients, 

Microsoft’s outsourcing business has always been an important area for development by the Group. With 

the acquisition, the Group is rapidly enlarging its market share in Microsoft business.

The total consideration of the acquisition is US$3,000,000 (equivalent to RMB23,400,000), comprising 

a cash consideration of US$500,000 (equivalent to RMB3,900,000) and the issuance of consideration 

shares which amount to a maximum of US$2,500,000 (equivalent to RMB19,500,000). During the 

year, the Company has issued 3,196,721 ordinary shares with nominal value per share of HK$0.05 each 

(the “fi rst portion of consideration shares”) for the acquisition and the remaining ordinary shares (the 

“second portion of consideration shares”) will be issued after 1 July 2007 subject to the achievement of 

the revenue and the entering into a master contract with Microsoft as described in the announcement 

of the Company dated 4 July 2006. The directors are of the opinion that the revenue will be achieved. 

The fair value of the fi rst and second portion of consideration shares, determined using the published 

price available at the date of the acquisition at HK$1.09, amounted to RMB3,484,000 (equivalent to 

HK$3,484,000) and RMB15,600,000 (equivalent to HK$15,600,000) respectively. The amount of the 

second portion of consideration shares of RMB15,600,000 was presented as deferred consideration in the 

consolidated balance sheet.

Acquisition of the contract-based customer-related intangible and technical expertise was accounted for 

as intangible assets (see note 14) and represented the total consideration of RMB22,984,000. The outfl ow 

of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the acquisition was US$500,000 (equivalent to RMB3,900,000).

33 MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed and after the achievement of the Performance Hurdle, the issuance 

of the second portion of consideration shares of the Company for the acquisition of 51% equity interest in the 

registered capital of Chinasoft Resources Beijing by Chinasoft (HK), a subsidiary of the Group from CS&S (HK) 

was effected (see note 29(b)).

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the directors of the Company, Chinasoft (HK) acquired the Mobile and 

Embedded Division of Opportune Technology. Part of the consideration was satisfi ed by the issuance of new 

shares of the Company (see note 32(b)).

During the year ended 31 December 2005, pursuant to an agreement entered into between CS&S (HK) and 

Chinasoft (HK), a subsidiary of the Group on 28 April 2005, Chinasoft (HK) acquired 51% equity interest in the 

registered capital of Chinasoft Resources Beijing from CS&S (HK). The consideration is to be satisfi ed by the 

issuance of new shares of the Company.
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34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases in respect of land and buildings which fall due as follows:

 2006 2005

 RMB’000 RMB’000

Within one year 13,512 2,170

In the second to fi fth year inclusive 15,554 5,105

 29,066 7,275

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain offi ce properties. Certain lease 

agreements for offi ces properties were replaced by new agreements entered into during the year. Leases are 

negotiated for lease terms ranging from a half year to three years (2005: a half year to six years) for the Group 

and rentals are normally fi xed during the lease period.

35. CAPITAL COMMITMENT

 2006 2005

 RMB’000 RMB’000

Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided in the

 consolidated fi nancial statements in respect of

 acquisition of software 1,196 –
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed 

on 2 June 2003 by the then shareholders for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to the people and 

the parties working for the interest of the Group. Under the Share Option Scheme, the board of directors may 

grant options to eligible participants including the directors, full-time and part-time employees of the Company 

or any of its subsidiaries or associates, and suppliers and customers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or 

associates to subscribe for shares in the Company in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme. 

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30 days from the date of offer, and a consideration 

of HK$1.00 is payable by each of the participants on acceptance of the grant of options. The Share Option 

Scheme will remain valid for a period of ten years commencing on 2 June 2003. An option may be exercised in 

accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period of not more than ten years 

after the date on which an offer of the grant of an option is accepted. The subscription price for shares under 

the Share Option Scheme will be a price determined by the board of directors and notifi ed to each grantee 

and will be no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily 

quotations sheet on the date of offer, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as 

stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the fi ve trading days immediately preceding the date 

of offer and; (iii) the nominal value of a share.

The Company may grant options under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the 

Company entitling the grantees to exercise up to an aggregate of 10% of the total number of shares in issue 

immediately upon the listing of the shares on the Stock Exchange and subject to renewal with shareholders’ 

approval. However, the maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding 

options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes 

of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time. The number 

of shares in respect of which options may be granted to any individual in aggregate within any 12-month 

period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue, without prior approval from the 

Company’s shareholders. Options granted to substantial shareholders or independent non-executive directors 

in any one year exceeding the higher of 0.1% of the Company’s shares in issue and with a value in excess of 

HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the Company’s shareholders.
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME – Continued

The movements of the share options granted to the directors and employees of the Group during the year 
ended 31 December 2006 are as follows:
 Number of share options
     Outstanding Granted Reclassifi cation Outstanding
Type of Date Exercise   at during during at
option holders of grant price Vesting period Exercise period 1.1.2006 the year the year 31.12.2006

Directors:

Dr. Chen Yuhong 13.8.2003 HK$0.58 13.8.2003-12.8.2004 13.8.2004-12.8.2013 300,000 – – 300,000
   13.8.2003-12.8.2005 13.8.2005-12.8.2013 300,000 – – 300,000
   13.8.2003-12.8.2006 13.8.2006-12.8.2013 300,000 – – 300,000
   13.8.2003-12.8.2007 13.8.2007-12.8.2013 300,000 – – 300,000

 13.5.2004 HK$0.65 Nil 13.5.2004-12.5.2014 1,250,000 – – 1,250,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2005 13.5.2005-12.5.2014 1,250,000 – – 1,250,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2006 13.5.2006-12.5.2014 1,250,000 – – 1,250,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2007 13.5.2007-12.5.2014 1,250,000 – – 1,250,000

 30.3.2006 HK$0.97 Nil 30.3.2006-29.3.2016 – 300,000 – 300,000
   30.3.2006-29.3.2007 30.3.2007-29.3.2016 – 300,000 – 300,000
   30.3.2006-29.3.2008 30.3.2008-29.3.2016 – 300,000 – 300,000
   30.3.2006-29.3.2009 30.3.2009-29.3.2016 – 300,000 – 300,000

Mr. Peng Jiang 13.8.2003 HK$0.58 13.8.2003-12.8.2004 13.8.2004-12.8.2013 200,000 – (200,000) –
   13.8.2003-12.8.2005 13.8.2005-12.8.2013 200,000 – (200,000) –
   13.8.2003-12.8.2006 13.8.2006-12.8.2013 200,000 – (200,000) –
   13.8.2003-12.8.2007 13.8.2007-12.8.2013 200,000 – (200,000) –

 13.5.2004 HK$0.65 Nil 13.5.2004-12.5.2014 750,000 – (750,000) –
   13.5.2004-12.5.2005 13.5.2005-12.5.2014 750,000 – (750,000) –
   13.5.2004-12.5.2006 13.5.2006-12.5.2014 750,000 – (750,000) –
   13.5.2004-12.5.2007 13.5.2007-12.5.2014 750,000 – (750,000) –

Mr. Duncan Chiu 13.5.2004 HK$0.65 Nil 13.5.2004-12.5.2014 250,000 – – 250,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2005 13.5.2005-12.5.2014 250,000 – – 250,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2006 13.5.2006-12.5.2014 250,000 – – 250,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2007 13.5.2007-12.5.2014 250,000 – – 250,000

Dr. Cui Hui 13.5.2004 HK$0.65 Nil 13.5.2004-12.5.2014 125,000 – – 125,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2005 13.5.2005-12.5.2014 125,000 – – 125,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2006 13.5.2006-12.5.2014 125,000 – – 125,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2007 13.5.2007-12.5.2014 125,000 – – 125,000

Mr. Wang Hui 13.8.2003 HK$0.58 13.8.2003-12.8.2004 13.8.2004-12.8.2013 250,000 – – 250,000
   13.8.2003-12.8.2005 13.8.2005-12.8.2013 250,000 – – 250,000
   13.8.2003-12.8.2006 13.8.2006-12.8.2013 250,000 – – 250,000
   13.8.2003-12.8.2007 13.8.2007-12.8.2013 250,000 – – 250,000

 13.5.2004 HK$0.65 Nil 13.5.2004-12.5.2014 875,000 – – 875,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2005 13.5.2005-12.5.2014 875,000 – – 875,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2006 13.5.2006-12.5.2014 875,000 – – 875,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2007 13.5.2007-12.5.2014 875,000 – – 875,000

 30.3.2006 HK$0.97 Nil 30.3.2006-29.3.2016 – 250,000 – 250,000
   30.3.2006-29.3.2007 30.3.2007-29.3.2016 – 250,000 – 250,000
   30.3.2006-29.3.2008 30.3.2008-29.3.2016 – 250,000 – 250,000
   30.3.2006-29.3.2009 30.3.2009-29.3.2016 – 250,000 – 250,000

Dr. Tang Zhenming 13.8.2003 HK$0.58 13.8.2003-12.8.2004 13.8.2004-12.8.2013 80,000 – – 80,000
   13.8.2003-12.8.2005 13.8.2005-12.8.2013 80,000 – – 80,000
   13.8.2003-12.8.2006 13.8.2006-12.8.2013 80,000 – – 80,000
   13.8.2003-12.8.2007 13.8.2007-12.8.2013 80,000 – – 80,000

 13.5.2004 HK$0.65 Nil 13.5.2004-12.5.2014 650,000 – – 650,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2005 13.5.2005-12.5.2014 650,000 – – 650,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2006 13.5.2006-12.5.2014 650,000 – – 650,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2007 13.5.2007-12.5.2014 650,000 – – 650,000

 30.3.2006 HK$0.97 Nil 30.3.2006-29.3.2016 – 200,000 – 200,000
   30.3.2006-29.3.2007 30.3.2007-29.3.2016 – 200,000 – 200,000
   30.3.2006-29.3.2008 30.3.2008-29.3.2016 – 200,000 – 200,000
   30.3.2006-29.3.2009 30.3.2009-29.3.2016 – 200,000 – 200,000

     18,920,000 3,000,000 (3,800,000) 18,120,000

Other employees 13.8.2003 HK$0.58 13.8.2003-12.8.2004 13.8.2004-12.8.2013 1,697,500 – 200,000 1,897,500
   13.8.2003-12.8.2005 13.8.2005-12.8.2013 1,697,500 – 200,000 1,897,500
   13.8.2003-12.8.2006 13.8.2006-12.8.2013 1,697,500 – 200,000 1,897,500
   13.8.2003-12.8.2007 13.8.2007-12.8.2013 1,697,500 – 200,000 1,897,500

 13.5.2004 HK$0.65 Nil 13.5.2004-12.5.2014 7,275,000 – 750,000 8,025,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2005 13.5.2005-12.5.2014 7,275,000 – 750,000 8,025,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2006 13.5.2006-12.5.2014 7,275,000 – 750,000 8,025,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2007 13.5.2007-12.5.2014 7,275,000 – 750,000 8,025,000

 30.3.2006 HK$0.97 Nil 30.3.2006-29.3.2016 – 3,100,000 – 3,100,000
   30.3.2006-29.3.2007 30.3.2007-29.3.2016 – 3,100,000 – 3,100,000
   30.3.2006-29.3.2008 30.3.2008-29.3.2016 – 3,100,000 – 3,100,000
   30.3.2006-29.3.2009 30.3.2009-29.3.2016 – 3,100,000 – 3,100,000

Customers 13.5.2004 HK$0.65 Nil 13.5.2004-12.5.2014 2,000,000 – – 2,000,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2005 13.5.2005-12.5.2014 2,000,000 – – 2,000,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2006 13.5.2006-12.5.2014 2,000,000 – – 2,000,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2007 13.5.2007-12.5.2014 2,000,000 – – 2,000,000

     62,810,000 15,400,000 – 78,210,000

Exercisable at the end of the year       50,957,500
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME – Continued

The movements of the share options granted to the directors and employees of the Group during the year 

ended 31 December 2005 are as follows:
 Number of share options

     Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
Type of Date Exercise   at during at
option holders of grant price Vesting period Exercise period 1.1.2006 the year 31.12.2006

Directors:

Dr. Chen Yuhong 13.8.2003 HK$0.58 13.8.2003-12.8.2004 13.8.2004-12.8.2013 300,000 – 300,000
   13.8.2003-12.8.2005 13.8.2005-12.8.2013 300,000 – 300,000
   13.8.2003-12.8.2006 13.8.2006-12.8.2013 300,000 – 300,000
   13.8.2003-12.8.2007 13.8.2007-12.8.2013 300,000 – 300,000

 13.5.2004 HK$0.65 Nil 13.5.2004-12.5.2014 1,250,000 – 1,250,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2005 13.5.2005-12.5.2014 1,250,000 – 1,250,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2006 13.5.2006-12.5.2014 1,250,000 – 1,250,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2007 13.5.2007-12.5.2014 1,250,000 – 1,250,000

Mr. Peng Jiang 13.8.2003 HK$0.58 13.8.2003-12.8.2004 13.8.2004-12.8.2013 200,000 – 200,000
   13.8.2003-12.8.2005 13.8.2005-12.8.2013 200,000 – 200,000
   13.8.2003-12.8.2006 13.8.2006-12.8.2013 200,000 – 200,000
   13.8.2003-12.8.2007 13.8.2007-12.8.2013 200,000 – 200,000

 13.5.2004 HK$0.65 Nil 13.5.2004-12.5.2014 750,000 – 750,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2005 13.5.2005-12.5.2014 750,000 – 750,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2006 13.5.2006-12.5.2014 750,000 – 750,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2007 13.5.2007-12.5.2014 750,000 – 750,000

Mr. Duncan Chiu 13.5.2004 HK$0.65 Nil 13.5.2004-12.5.2014 250,000 – 250,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2005 13.5.2005-12.5.2014 250,000 – 250,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2006 13.5.2006-12.5.2014 250,000 – 250,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2007 13.5.2007-12.5.2014 250,000 – 250,000

Dr. Cui Hui 13.5.2004 HK$0.65 Nil 13.5.2004-12.5.2014 125,000 – 125,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2005 13.5.2005-12.5.2014 125,000 – 125,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2006 13.5.2006-12.5.2014 125,000 – 125,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2007 13.5.2007-12.5.2014 125,000 – 125,000

Mr. Wang Hui 13.8.2003 HK$0.58 13.8.2003-12.8.2004 13.8.2004-12.8.2013 250,000 – 250,000
   13.8.2003-12.8.2005 13.8.2005-12.8.2013 250,000 – 250,000
   13.8.2003-12.8.2006 13.8.2006-12.8.2013 250,000 – 250,000
   13.8.2003-12.8.2007 13.8.2007-12.8.2013 250,000 – 250,000

 13.5.2004 HK$0.65 Nil 13.5.2004-12.5.2014 875,000 – 875,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2005 13.5.2005-12.5.2014 875,000 – 875,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2006 13.5.2006-12.5.2014 875,000 – 875,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2007 13.5.2007-12.5.2014 875,000 – 875,000

Dr. Tang Zhenming 13.8.2003 HK$0.58 13.8.2003-12.8.2004 13.8.2004-12.8.2013 80,000 – 80,000
   13.8.2003-12.8.2005 13.8.2005-12.8.2013 80,000 – 80,000
   13.8.2003-12.8.2006 13.8.2006-12.8.2013 80,000 – 80,000
   13.8.2003-12.8.2007 13.8.2007-12.8.2013 80,000 – 80,000

 13.5.2004 HK$0.65 Nil 13.5.2004-12.5.2014 650,000 – 650,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2005 13.5.2005-12.5.2014 650,000 – 650,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2006 13.5.2006-12.5.2014 650,000 – 650,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2007 13.5.2007-12.5.2014 650,000 – 650,000

     18,920,000 – 18,920,000

Other employees 13.8.2003 HK$0.58 13.8.2003-12.8.2004 13.8.2004-12.8.2013 1,830,000 (132,500) 1,697,500
   13.8.2003-12.8.2005 13.8.2005-12.8.2013 1,830,000 (132,500) 1,697,500
   13.8.2003-12.8.2006 13.8.2006-12.8.2013 1,830,000 (132,500) 1,697,500
   13.8.2003-12.8.2007 13.8.2007-12.8.2013 1,830,000 (132,500) 1,697,500

 13.5.2004 HK$0.65 Nil 13.5.2004-12.5.2014 7,275,000 – 7,275,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2005 13.5.2005-12.5.2014 7,275,000 – 7,275,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2006 13.5.2006-12.5.2014 7,275,000 – 7,275,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2007 13.5.2007-12.5.2014 7,275,000 – 7,275,000

Customers 13.5.2004 HK$0.65 Nil 13.5.2004-12.5.2014 2,000,000 – 2,000,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2005 13.5.2005-12.5.2014 2,000,000 – 2,000,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2006 13.5.2006-12.5.2014 2,000,000 – 2,000,000
   13.5.2004-12.5.2007 13.5.2007-12.5.2014 2,000,000 – 2,000,000

     63,340,000 (530,000) 62,810,000

Exercisable at the end of the year      31,405,000

No share options have been exercised or cancelled during both years.
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME – Continued

The estimated fair values of the share options granted on 30 March 2006 ranged from HK$0.34 to HK$0.41 

and were calculated using the Binomial model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Share price on grant date HK$0.97

Exercise price HK$0.97

Expected volatility 41.55%

Time to maturity 10 years

Risk-free rate 4.53%

Expected dividend yield 1.3%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of the Company’s share price over a period of 

260 days.

The Group recognised a total expense of RMB4,145,000 for the year ended 31 December 2006 (2005: 

RMB3,617,000) in relation to share options granted by the Company.

37. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

As stipulated by the rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans 

for its employees in the PRC. The Group is required to contribute a certain percentage of the basic salaries of 

its employees to the retirement plans, and has no further obligation for the actual payment of the previous or 

post retirement benefi ts. The relevant state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire present 

obligation to retired employees.

In accordance with the relevant mandatory provident fund laws and regulations of Hong Kong, the Group 

operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying Hong Kong 

employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group and under the control of an 

independent MPF service provider. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each 

required to make contributions to the scheme at rates specifi ed in the rules. The only obligation of the Group in 

respect of the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under the scheme.

During the year, the total cost of retirement benefi t contributions charged to the consolidated income statement 

of RMB6,931,000 (2005: RMB3,214,000) represents contributions to the schemes made by the Group at rates 

specifi ed in the rules of the respective schemes. No forfeited contributions may be used by the employers to 

reduce the existing level of contributions.
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(i) During the year, the Group had the following transactions with the following companies:

  2006 2005

 Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

Provision of software and installation

 services for a management system

 software development and technology project

  – a customer of CNSS (a) & (b) – 1,374

  – 鄭州中軟信息技術有限公司 (c) 10 –

   (Zhengzhou Chinasoft Information

   Technology Co., Ltd. (“Chinasoft 

   Zhengzhou”))

  – Chinasoft Wuhan (d) 1,768 –

Provision of technical development services

 – CNSS (a), (b) & (vii) 1,711 –

 – CS&S(HK) (e) (vii) 320 –

Provision of IT outsourcing services

 – Microsoft (f) (ix) 4,775 –

 – Microsoft (China) Co., Ltd. (f) (ix) 49,707 –

Subcontracting costs

 – Chinasoft Zhengzhou (c) (viii) 190 243

 – Chinasoft Wuhan (d) 800 –

 – 山東中軟信息技術有限公司 (c) 97 96

  (Shandong Chinasoft Information

  Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shandong Chinasoft”))

 – CNSS (a) & (b) – 88

Rental expenses

 – CNSS (a) & (b) 4,364 2,889

 – 中國計算機軟件與技術服務總公司
  China National Computer Software

  & Technology Service Corporation (“CS&S”) (g) – 118
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS – Continued

Notes

(a) CNSS was a holding company of a shareholder of the Company.

(b) Mr. Cui Hui, a director of the Company, is also a director of CNSS.

(c) Chinasoft Zhengzhou and Shandong Chinasoft were subsidiaries of CNSS.

(d) Chinasoft Wuhan is an associate of the Group.

(e) CS&S (HK) is a shareholder of the Company.

(f) Microsoft was a holder of the Series A Preferred Shares of the Company. Microsoft (China) Co., Ltd. is a 

subsidiary of Microsoft.

(g) CS&S was a holding company of a shareholder of the Company from 19 August 2004 to 30 September 2004 

and a minority shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company from 1 January 2004 to 18 August 2004. During 

the year ended 31 December 2004, CNSS acquired CS&S and took over its assets and liabilities pursuant to an 

acquisition agreement dated 18 August 2004 and CS&S was subsequently de-registered under the laws of the 

PRC on 25 April 2005.

(ii) Pursuant to a trademark license agreement (“Trademark Licence Agreement”) entered into between 

CS&S and the Company on 20 December 2003, CS&S granted to the Company an exclusive right to 

use a trademark of 中軟總公司計算機培訓中心 as defi ned on the Trademark Licence Agreement for a 

period of 25 years pending registration of such trademark with the Trademark Bureau of the PRC for a 

consideration of RMB2,000,000. Such amount, which is refundable on unsuccessful registration, has been 

paid to CS&S and was included in the amount due from a related company at 31 December 2005. During 

the year, CNSS obtained the trademark registration certifi cate from the Trademark Bureau. The effective 

period of the registration is from 21 March 2006 to 20 March 2016. Accordingly, the amount due from 

a related company of RMB2,000,000 was reclassifi ed as trademark use right in the consolidated balance 

sheet in 2006.
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS – Continued

(iii) Pursuant to an agreement entered into between CS&S (HK), a subsidiary of CNSS, and Chinasoft (HK) 

on 28 April 2005, Chinasoft (HK) acquired 51% equity interest in the registered capital of Chinasoft 

Resources Beijing from CS&S (HK). The consideration of the acquisition was satisfi ed by the allotment 

and issue of 58,120,755 new shares of the Company of HK$0.05 each to CS&S (HK). The acquisition was 

completed on 18 July 2005. The acquisition constituted a connected transaction of the Company under 

the GEM Listing Rules as CS&S (HK) is a connected person (as defi ned under the GEM Listing Rules) of 

the Company. The independent non-executive directors of the Company considered that the terms of the 

acquisition were fair and reasonable and in the interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole, 

and the acquisition was approved by the independent shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting 

on 22 June 2005.

(iv) Pursuant to an agreement entered into between CS&S (HK), a subsidiary of CNSS, and Chinasoft (HK) 

on 15 November 2005, Chinasoft (HK) conditionally agreed to acquire the remaining 49% equity 

interest in the registered capital of Chinasoft Resources Beijing from CS&S (HK). The consideration of the 

acquisition would be satisfi ed by cash in a maximum aggregate amount of RMB43,556,000 (equivalent 

to HK$41,881,000) subject to satisfaction of certain conditions. The acquisition was completed during 

the year. The acquisition constituted a connected transaction of the Company under the GEM Listing 

Rules as CS&S (HK) is a connected person (as defi ned under the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company. 

The independent non-executive directors of the Company considered that the terms of the acquisition 

were fair and reasonable and in the interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole, and the 

acquisition was approved by the independent shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting on 28 

December 2005.

(v) Pursuant to a rental agreement entered into between Chinasoft Beijing and CNSS on 1 June 2005, 

Chinasoft Beijing prepaid a rent of RMB866,000 to CNSS for the lease of offi ce premises for a term 

commencing from 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007. At 31 December 2005, the prepaid lease payments 

were analysed for reporting purposes as a non-current asset of RMB216,000 and current asset of 

RMB650,000 which was included in trade and other receivables in the consolidated balance sheet. The 

prepaid lease payments were expensed during the year.
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS – Continued

(vi) Pursuant to an agreement entered into between 北京中軟賽博中文信息技術有限責任公司 (Beijing 

Chinasoft Cyber-Chinese Information Technology Company Ltd.) (“Beijing Cyber-Chinese”), an 

associate of CNSS, and Chinasoft Beijing on 1 December 2005, Chinasoft Beijing advanced a loan of 

RMB1,450,000 to Beijing Cyber-Chinese for a term of 6 months from 1 December 2005 to 31 May 2006. 

The loan was unsecured, non-interest bearing and fully repaid by Beijing Cyber-Chinese in March 2006.

(vii) During the year, Chinasoft Guangzhou and Chinasoft Resource (International) Limited provided technical 

development services of RMB1,711,000 and RMB320,000 to CNSS and CS&S (HK) respectively. At 31 

December 2006, the amount of RMB1,711,000 was included in trade receivables from related companies 

in the consolidated balance sheet.

(viii) During the year, Chinasoft Zhengzhou, a subsidiary of CNSS, provided subcontracting service of 

RMB190,000 (2005: RMB243,000) to Chinasoft Beijing. At 31 December 2006, the amount of 

RMB190,000 (2005: RMB68,000) was included in trade payable to a related company (2005: trade and 

other payables) in the consolidated balance sheet.

(ix) In September 2005, the Company entered into a Commercial Agreement with Microsoft for a period of 
three years. Pursuant to the Commercial Agreement, the Company and Microsoft agreed to drive revenue 
associated with delivering software solutions using certain Microsoft software products and to assist the 
Company in growing its IT service business in the PRC. The transactions under the Commercial Agreement 
constitute non-exempt continuing connected transactions for the Company under the GEM Listing 
Rules as Microsoft is a connected person (as defi ned under the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company after 
subscription of the Series A Preferred Shares on 6 January 2006. The independent non-executive directors 
of the Company considered that the continuing connected transactions contemplated thereunder were 
entered into in the ordinary and usual course of the Group and on normal commercial terms, and the 
terms of the Commercial Agreement were fair and reasonable and in the interest of the Company and the 
shareholders as a whole. The above were approved by the independent shareholders at an extraordinary 
general meeting held by the Company on 28 December 2005.
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS – Continued

(x) During the year, the Company entered into a Global Master Services Agreement (“the GMS Agreement”) 
with Microsoft for a term of fi ve years to provide a framework of the agreed general terms and conditions 
for the provision of the IT outsourcing services by subsidiaries of the Group. Each project to be undertaken 
by subsidiaries of the Group for Microsoft under the GMS Agreement would be subject to specifi c terms 
on the amount of fee, particulars of the project and expected timetable. The entering into the GMS 
Agreement, and the projects undertaken by subsidiaries of the Group thereunder, will constitute non-
exempt continuing connected transactions for the Company under the GEM Listing Rules as Microsoft 
is a connected person (as defi ned under the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company. The independent 
non-executive directors of the Company considered that the GMS Agreement and the transactions 
contemplated thereunder were entered into in the ordinary and usual course of the Group and on 
normal commercial terms, and the terms of the GMS Agreement and the annual caps for the transactions 
contemplated under the GMS Agreement for each of six fi nancial years ended 31 December 2011 were 
fair and reasonable and in the interest of the Company and the shareholders as a whole. The above were 
approved by the independent shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting held by the Company on 
27 October 2006. At 31 December 2006, an amount of RMB 9,381,000 was included in trade receivables 
from related companies in the consolidated balance sheet in respect of provision of IT outsourcing services 
to Microsoft and Microsoft (China) Co., Ltd.

(xi) In August 2006, Chinasoft Resources Beijing acquired the entire interest in the issued share capital of 
Chinasoft Resources (International) Limited from Ms. Yan Junjue, a director of Chinasoft Resources Beijing, 
Chinasoft Resources Shanghai, Chinasoft Resources Shenzhen and Chinasoft Resource (International) 
Limited for a cash consideration of HK$1.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the year was as follows:

 2006 2005
 RMB’000 RMB’000

Short-term employee benefi ts 5,085 3,448
Share option expenses 1,244 1,257

 6,329 4,705

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined by the remuneration committee having regard 
to the performance of individuals and market trends.
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39. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

On 2 January 2007, the Company entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement and a supplementary 

agreement with Hinge Global Resource Inc. (“HGR”) and its shareholders for the acquisition of an aggregate of 

7,249,419 HGR Shares, representing approximately 96.61% of the then HGR shares. HGR and its subsidiaries 

are principally engaged in the IT outsourcing business. The consideration of the acquisition will be satisfi ed by 

way of cash and a maximum of 482,625,000 consideration shares in the aggregate amount of not exceeding 

US$55,000,000 million (equivalent to approximately RMB429,000,000). The acquisition constitutes a major 

transaction under the GEM Listing Rules for the Company and is subject to the approval of the independent 

shareholders.

Details of the above are set out in the announcement dated 5 January 2007 issued by the Company. The 

acquisition has yet to be completed at the date of approval of the consolidated fi nancial statements.
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The Board recommend the payment of a fi nal dividend of HKD0.001 (2005: HKD0.025 fi nal dividend) per share for 

the year ended December 31, 2006, totaling approximately Rmb758,817 (2005: Rmb18,309,000), to shareholders.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 14 May 2007 to 16 May 2007, both days inclusive, 

during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the fi nal dividend, all transfer 

documents accompanied by the relevant share certifi cates, must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong 

branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at 46th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 

Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on 11 May 2007. Subject to the approval of the 

fi nal dividend by shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the relevant dividend warrant will be 

despatched to shareholders on 8 June 2007.
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As at the date hereof, the Board comprises three executive directors, namely, Dr. Chen Yuhong, Mr. Wang Hui, Dr. 

Tang Zhenming, fi ve non-executive directors, namely, Madam Tang Min (Chairman), Dr. Cui Hui, Mr. Duncan Chiu, Mr. 

Timothy Chen Yung Cheng, Mr. Liu Zheng and three independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. He Ning, Mr. 

Zhen Zhijie and Dr. Leung Wing Yin Patrick.

This announcement will remain on the “Latest Company Announcement” page of the GEM website for at least 7 days 

from the date of its publication.

19	Chinasoft	PA	End(E).indd			114 4/1/07			5:55:43	PM


	00 Chinasoft PA GEM Characteristics(E).pdf
	01 Chinasoft PA Content(e).pdf
	02 Chinasoft PA Corp Info(e).pdf
	03 Chinasoft PA Six Year(e).pdf
	04 Chinasoft PA Milestone(e)06.pdf
	05 Chinasoft PA Managing(e).pdf
	07 Chinasoft PA MD&A(e).pdf
	08 Chinasoft PA Biographical(e).pdf
	09 Chinasoft PA Director(e).pdf
	10 Chinasoft PA Governance(e).pdf
	12 Chinasoft PA Auditor's(E).pdf
	13 Chinasoft PA Con Income(E).pdf
	14 Chinasoft PA Con Balance Sheet(E).pdf
	15 Chinasoft PA Con SCE(E).pdf
	16 Chinasoft PA Cash Flow(E).pdf
	17a Chinasoft PA Notes(E).pdf
	17b Chinasoft PA Notes(E)indd.pdf
	18 Chinasoft PA Final Dividend(E).pdf
	19 Chinasoft PA End(E).pdf



